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Corporate Information
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Simplified Corporate Chart
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The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the
date of this report.

Hi Sun Technology
(China) Limited
Stock Code: 818

Hi Sun Technology
Holding Limited

(Investment holding and
financial solutions)

100%

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information
Technology Limited

(Financial solutions)

Hangzhou PAX
Electricity Technology Limited

(Electronic power meters and solutions)

80% 100%

Beijing Hi Sunsray
Information Technology Limited

(Telecommunication solutions)

Pax Technology Limited
(Electronic payment products and services)
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Simplified Corporate Chart

NCIEY - AR

TRBBEEAREAPAEEIZLENB AR ZARRBER

aERE (PE)
BRLF
P 5% - 818

EEEERER
BRLA
(REZBR KT RERTZR)

100%

PN E B B
BRAT
(BFABERBEAHR)

tREBEERES
BITARD R
(EBERFTR)

100%

80%

tREBREREES
BITARA A
ERERSR)

BEMNKARQH
BFXNERRRE)

EENE (FE)BERAT —EBNEFR S

B ¥ R



Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRRBFEAGELS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general
meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”) of Hi Sun
Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) will be
held at Room 2416, 24th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 18 May
2009, Monday at 10:30 a.m. for the following
purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the audited consolidated
financial statements and the reports of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and
of the auditors for the year ended 31 December
2008;

2. To re-elect retiring Directors and to authorise
the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration;

3. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the
Board of Directors to fix their remuneration;

As special business, to consider and, if thought
fit, pass the following resolutions, with or without
modifications, as Ordinary Resolutions:

4. “THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all the powers of the Company to allot, issue
and deal with additional shares of
HK$0.0025 each in the share capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including warrants,
bonds, notes and other securities which
carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise
of such powers be and is hereby generally
and unconditionally approved;
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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(b)

the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution shall authorise the Directors
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of HK$0.0025 each in the
capital of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options
(including bonds, warrants, debentures,
notes and any securities which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into
shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such powers
after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to options or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined); or (ii) the exercise of
any option granted under the share option
scheme of the Company or any other option
scheme or similar arrangement for the time
being adopted for the grant or issue to
officers and/or employees of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or
rights to acquire shares of the Company;
or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of
shares in lieu of the whole or part of a
dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company in force from time to time; or (iv)
an issue of shares in the Company upon
the exercise of rights of subscription or
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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conversion under the terms of any existing
warrants of the Company or any existing
securities of the Company which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into
shares of the Company, shall not exceed
20% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date of the passing of this
resolution and the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
the passing of this resolution until whichever
is the earliest of:

() the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the Directors by this
resolution.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares of
the Company or issue of option, warrants
or other securities giving the right to
subscribe for shares of the Company, open
for a period fixed by the Directors to the
holders of shares of the Company, or any
class thereof, whose name appear on the
register of members of the Company (and,
where appropriate, to holders of other
securities of the Company entitled to the
offer) on a fixed record date in proportion
to their holdings of such shares (or, where
appropriate, such other securities) as at that
date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to
any restrictions or obligations under the
laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory outside Hong
Kong applicable to the Company).”
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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5.

“THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all powers of the Company to repurchase
shares of HK$0.0025 each in the capital of
the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
or on any other stock exchange on which
the shares of the Company may be listed
and recognised by The Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong
(“Securities and Futures Commission”) and
the Stock Exchange for such purpose,
subject to and in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the Securities and
Futures Commission, the Stock Exchange
or of any other stock exchange as amended
from time to time and all applicable laws in
this regard, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of
the Company authorised to be repurchased
by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) of this resolution during
the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the passing of this resolution,
and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

5.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFASES

(c) for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
the passing of this resolution until whichever
is the earliest of:

() the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company; and

(i) the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the Directors by this
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resolution.”
“THAT subject to the passing of Resolutions 6. [BRTEHAARNZBEMSHFI4NGIAE
No.4 and No.5 set out in this notice convening REBRERABE  BABBEIARAAK
this meeting, the general mandate granted to REMEFIBABRREE TESTUR
the Directors to allot, issue and deal with B COBORBREEREEIINRND 2 — KK
additional shares pursuant to Resolution No.4 B MAXRRRBREBEERAAASES
set out in the notice convening this meeting be FREESIEARBRME L 2 BRI
and is hereby extended by the addition thereto NARAR ZRIDEERLTE - EERD
of an amount representing the aggregate B BB EBABARNRZRERA
nominal amount of shares in the capital of the 2B  ARABBETRACZHERRE
Company repurchased by the Company under Z10% © |
the authority granted pursuant to Resolution
No.5 set out in the notice convening this
meeting, provided that such amount of shares
so repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of passing
this resolution.”
By Order of the Board AEE@m
Li Wenjin TNE
Executive Director HITEFE
Hong Kong, 22 April 2009 HAE —ETENFEAZ+ZH
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

REBEARESL

Notes:

(1)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by this notice is entitled to appoint one or more
proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not
be a member of the Company.

A form of proxy for use at the meeting is enclosed.

Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not
preclude a member from attending and voting in person
at the meeting or any adjourned meeting if the member
so desires.

To be valid, a form of proxy must be duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
and lodged, together with the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarilly
certified copy of that power or authority, at the principal
place of the business of the Company at Room 2416,
24th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned
meeting (as the case may be).

With regard to resolution no.2 in this notice, the Board of
Directors proposes that the retiring Directors, namely, Mr.
Kui Man Chun, Mr. Xu Chang Jun and Mr. Xu Sitao be re-
elected as Directors. The biographies of these Directors
are also set out in Appendix Il to the circular of the
Company to be despatched to the shareholders
accompanying with this annual report.

All voting by the members at the meeting shall be
conducted by poll.

Mt

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)
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Chalrman s Statement

FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present Hi Sun’s Annual Report for
the year ended 31 December 2008 (the “Year”).

QOur results for the year ended 31 December 2008
demonstrated encouraging growths in turnover and
segmental operating profit compared to that of 2007,
which was mainly attributable to the success of our
diversified business model. The Group’s turnover
amounted to HK$1,213.47 million, representing a
growth of 56% compared to 2007. Segmental
EBITDA amounted to HK$264.55 million,
representing an increase of 34% compared to 2007.
The increase in the operating results was mainly
attributable to the continuous growth in our recurring
profits from sales of EFT-POS terminals, electronic
power meters and solutions and telecommunication
solutions.

Profit before taxation dropped by HK$40.22 million
as compared to 2007, was mainly contributed by a
decrease in other gains (including gain on deemed
disposal of a subsidiary and disposal of investment
securities) by HK$90.72 million in current year.
Excluding other gains, the profit before taxation
increased 49% to HK$153.53 million compared to
HK$103.03 million in 2007. The management will
discuss more regarding the segmental performance
under a separate section.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Looking forward, EFT-POS terminals sales in
Mainland China are expected to keep its momentum,
as fueled by the rising acceptance of card payments
from the incessant improvement of the payment
transactions and processing infrastructure. Escalating
awareness on energy-saving solutions drives an
increase in demand for advanced power meter
solutions and the power management industry is
demanding products with high accuracy and
advanced technology in an effort to increase energy
efficiency. Moreover, the Chinese government has
implemented a plan to enhance the rural-urban
electricity network, as stated with the November
2008 — RMB4 trillion stimulus proposal, that is
expected to contribute to the market demand for
electronic power meters. The Group believes PAX
electricity is well positioned to benefit from these
trends which is expected to contribute to the
segment rebounding with a healthy growth rate in
2009.

Besides, Hi Sun is currently developing mobile
payment solutions which will enable consumers to
use their cell phones as a payment device to capture
the demand for innovative telecom solution, bringing
additional growth impetus to Hi Sun. This strategic
move is expected to create synergy among our
telecommunication solutions, financial solutions and
EFT-POS terminals segments.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Given the global financial tsunami, the Group expects
that the operating environment would be more
challenging in the near future. The falling consumer
confidence will further affect the consumption market.
Shrinkage in product orders has been emerging
gradually in many industries around the world.
However, the impacts from the global financial crisis
to the economy in China are believed to be less
severe. At the same time, the November 2008 -
RMB4 trillion stimulus proposal announced by the
Chinese government, is expected to bring in
numerous opportunities and catalyse the recovery
of the economy. Our devoted sales force will give
their greatest effort to take advantage of the business
opportunities. Looking ahead, we are confident in
the underlying competencies of our core and
developing businesses. Hi Sun, backed by a
seasoned and dedicated management team, is
poised to overcome the challenges brought by the
global economic downturn and seek for
enhancement in our financial performance. We are
in every confidence that Hi Sun’s model to develop
a high value-added business operation will be a great
success.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my utmost gratitude to our
customers, bankers, suppliers, business associates
and most valued shareholders for their continuous
trust and support to the Group.

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 April 2009
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As at 6 April 2009, the date of the Report of the
Directors, the biographical details of the directors
and senior management of the Company are as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, aged 62, is the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company. He graduated
from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at Peking
University in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and worked as a professor at Peking
University thereafter. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Cheung was a chairman of a company listed in the
PRC and a director of a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) and has working experience
in international trade, finance, asset management
and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was honoured
many awards, including being selected as the young
entrepreneur with outstanding contribution to China,
and won the first prize of national golden award for
enterprise initiators in the 4th National Technology
Industrialist Award and many other awards.

KUl MAN CHUN

Mr. Kui, aged 43, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated
from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s
degree in international relations and has over 15
years of experience in the information technology
industry and investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the
chairman and chief executive officer of Hi Sun Limited
(“HSL”), the Company’s substantial shareholder. Prior
to joining HSL in 2000, Mr. Kui was the president of
an enterprise in the PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management
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XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, aged 40, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from the Dalian University
of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in computer
science and engineering. Mr. Xu is also the director
of HSL. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu was
the president of a system integration company and
has an extensive experience in computer systems
integration of the financial industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, aged 45, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Peking University in
the PRC with a master’s degree in law. He has over
15 years of experience in investment and
administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also the managing
director of HSL. Prior to joining HSL in 1999, he
had worked for several companies in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

XU CHANG JUN

Mr. Xu, aged 42, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Peking University in
the PRC with a master’s degree in international
economics. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu
had worked for several companies in the PRC and
Hong Kong. He has over 15 years of experience in
corporate management of enterprise in Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, aged 47, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor
of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and is a member of Chartered Financial
Analyst and has over 20 years’ experience in
auditing, corporate advisory services as well as
financial management and compliance work. Mr. Tam
is currently the financial controller and company
secretary of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited, a
major red chip company listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He graduated with a
Bachelor’s degree in Law and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong.
He also graduated with a bachelor’s degree in Law
from the University of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr.
Leung has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1984 and is now a partner of the law firm,
Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He is also admitted as
a solicitor in England and Wales and as a barrister,
solicitor and notary public in Ontario, Canada. Mr.
Leung has extensive working experience in law both
in Hong Kong and in Canada. He served as a
member of the Inland Revenue Board of Review from
1997 to 2005 and is appointed as a China-appointed
Attesting Officer since January 2003. Mr. Leung is
currently an independent non-executive director of a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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XU SITAO

Mr Xu, aged 45, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking
University in the PRC with a bachelor of arts degree
in economics and from the University of Connecticut
with a master of arts degree in economics. He also
holds a master of science degree in Finance from
Boston College. Mr. Xu is currently the Chief
Representative China of the Economist Group and a
director of Advisory Services (China) of Economist
Intelligence Unit. Prior to the Economist Group, he
was a senior economist at Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Asia) Limited in Hong Kong from
May 2003 to May 2004 and was the Chief Asian
Economist of Societe Generale from September 2000
to November 2002. Between 1996 and 2000, he
was a Regional Treasury Economist at Standard
Chartered Bank. Prior to that, he was an Emerging
Asia Economist of Standard & Poor’'s MMS
International in Singapore.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 6 April 2009, the date of the Report of the
Directors, Messrs Li Xiaoguang, Shen Zheng, Nie
Guoming, Jiang Hongchun and Miss Hui Lok Yan
were the Company’s senior management.

LI XIAOGUANG

Mr. Li, aged 46, is the Chief Executive Officer of
Beijing Hi Sunsray Information Technology Limited.
He graduated from Peking University in the PRC
with a master’s degree in Computer Science. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Li was a member of a
company’s senior management in Beijing. He has
over 20 years of experience in corporate
management.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESEREEEEAER

SHEN ZHENG

Mr. Shen, aged 37, is the Chief Executive Officer of
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions
Information Technology Limited. He graduated from
University of Beijing with degree Information
Management. He has over 15 years of experience in
payment industry and financial industry.

NIE GUOMING

Mr. Nie, aged 47, is the President of Pax Technology
Limited. He graduated from Tsinghua University with
degree in Electronic Engineering and from Southeast
University in PRC with a master’s degree in Electronic
Engineering. He has over 12 years payment industry
experience.

JIANG HONGCHUN
Mr. Jiang, aged 38, is the Chief Executive Officer of
Hangzhou Pax Electricity Technology Limited. He
graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He
has over 15 years of experience in banking solutions
and meter solutions.

HUI LOK YAN

Miss. Hui, aged 30, is the Group Deputy Financial
Controller and joint Company Secretary of the
Company. She graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration. Miss. Hui is currently a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, she was a manager of an international
public accountancy Firm.
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERKE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of
its Board of Directors (“Board”) in ensuring effective
leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The Company recognises the importance of good
corporate governance to the Company’s healthy
growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on the principles (“Principles”) and code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing
Rules”).

The Company has applied in formulating its corporate
governance practices the Principles and complied
with most of the Code Provisions for the year and
up to the date of this report save for the limited
deviation(s) on the grounds and causes explained
below.

The Company periodically reviews its organisational
structure to ensure that operations are conducted in
accordance with the standards of the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERKE |

The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business
is vested in the Board, which assumes the
responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. All directors should make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters
of the Company which include the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All directors are provided with full and timely access
to board papers and relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, upon making request to
the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERKE

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the senior
management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the senior management
officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and to the exercising
of independent judgement.

The Board currently comprises eight members,
consisting of five executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors.

The Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Executive directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Chang Jun

Independent non-executive directors:

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman of Audit Committee)
Leung Wai Man, Roger (Member of Audit Committee)
Xu Sitao (Member of Audit Committee)
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERKE |

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to
time.

The biographical information of the directors of the
Company and their relationship among the members
of the Board of the Company, if any, are provided in
the “Directors and Senior Management” section of
this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual
confirmation from each independent non-executive
director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, which confirmed
to the Company that he has met the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a
wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. By taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all independent non-executive
directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.
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Appointment and Succession Planning
of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered
and transparent procedures for the appointment and
succession planning of directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of CG Code stipulates that
non-executive Director should be appointed for a
specific term subject to re-election.

All directors, including non-executive directors, of
the Company are appointed for tenures which shall
expire with retirement by rotation once every three
years.

On 18 April 2008, formal service contracts have been
entered into between the Company and each of the
independent non-executive Directors, further limiting
the term of each such Director to 1 year from their
respective appointment or their earlier retirement,
resignation or removal. As such, the Company has
complied with Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company.
Besides, the Company shall consider to engage
external legal and other professional advisors for
providing professional development and training
programmes to directors on an occasional basis.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ EEEEEREELHERR
Attendance

Regular Board meetings were held four times during FRASRTUATHREES R FEEK
the year for reviewing and approving the financial HEMBLEERR HEBRZ T+
and operating performance, for approving the final FTZHA=ZT—BLEFE2FXEE - #HE
results for the year ended 31 December 2007, interim ZEENFARA=THILHRPREESE -
results for the period ended 30 June 2008 and W& B R ERD B BEERAE RBUR o
considering and approving the overall strategies and

policies of the Company.

In addition, the Board held 11 meetings for N EEFEREBEE_ZETZNF+ A=

formulating policies and implementing laid-down T—BIEFEERIT T —REE - HETHK
policies during the year ended 31 December 2008. RREITERTER -
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TERERKE

The individual attendance record of each director at BEEERBE_TTENF+A=
the meetings of the Board and Audit Committee FtFELHFESEEEaRERELE
during the year ended 31 December 2008 is set out Z BRI E T

+—
Rt

below:
Attendance/Number of meetings
ERHEBITRE
Audit
Committee Regular
Meetings Meetings Others
Name of Directors EEsR EREEEER ERE3 H i
Cheung Yuk Fung ®EIE N/A 4/4 6/11
N iE A
Kui Man Chun REF N/A 4/4 6/11
N iE A
Xu Wensheng R A& N/A 4/4 6/11
N iE A
Li Wenijin E=XE N/A 4/4 11/11
T iE A
Xu Chang Jun REE N/A 4/4 10/11
N iE A
Tam Chun Fai B i 2/2 4/4 Note 1
it 1
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 2/2 4/4 Note 1
&t 1
Xu Sitao FRE 2/2 4/4 Note 1
Mt 1
Note: Mt -
1.  The independent non-executive Directors have not 1. ZEBUFPTESUELRELSTSE  0E
attended these meetings, the purpose of which were EETERENITEER Z2HETRBEITHR

mainly to deal with implementation of executive policies
and administrative routine.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For
other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company
and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

Company Secretary attend all regular Board meetings
and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and
keep minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for
directors’ inspection.
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According to current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s bye-laws
also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such
directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung acted as the
Chairman, and four of the other executive directors
shared the role of the Chief Executive Officer, until
Mr. Kui Man Chun has been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer from 20 June 2008 onwards. As
such, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are segregated and not exercised
by the same individuals.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance
practice. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at Board meetings, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.
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The role of the Chief Executive Officer focuses on
implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He/She is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for
the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely,
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board
committees are independent non-executive directors
and the list of the chairman and members of each
Board committee as at the date of this report is set
out below:

Audit Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger
Xu Sitao

Nomination Committee
Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)
Tam Chun Fai

Li Wenijin
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Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Li Wenijin

The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of
directors, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of
directors, and assessment of the independence of
the independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process
of selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships by making reference to the balance of
expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the requirements of the business of the
Group and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection
process when necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1)
and 87(2), Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Xu Chang
Jun, executive directors of the Company, Mr. Xu
Sitao, independent non-executive directors of the
Company, shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the 2009 annual
general meeting.
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The Board recommended the re-appointment of the
directors standing for re-election at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 22 April 2009 contains
detailed information of the directors standing for re-
election.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations on and
approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the directors and the
senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and
determination of the annual remuneration packages
of the directors and the senior management and
other related matters. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for collection and
administration of the human resources data and
making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Board of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors (including one independent
non-executive director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company'’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports
and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the qualified accountant or external
auditors before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external
auditors by reference to the work performed by
the external auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2008 to review the financial
results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, internal control system and
risk management review and processes and the re-
appointment of the external auditors.

There is no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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There is no different view taken by the Audit
Committee from the Board regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2008 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors
and the directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The Company has also established written guidelines
with exact terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules for securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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The statement of the external auditors of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 72 to 75.

INTERNAL CONTROL

For the internal control system of the Company, the
Board has developed the Group’s systems of internal
control and risk assessment and management. The
Board has overall responsibility for reviewing and
maintaining an adequate and effective internal control
system to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Group. During the year, the
Board has conducted reviews of the internal control
system and considered the internal control system
of the Group has been implemented effectively.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors have rendered certain non-
audit services to the Company for the year ended
31 December 2008 amounted to approximately of
HK$0.4 million. The remuneration paid to the external
auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to
approximately of HK$2.4 million.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’
meetings are contained in the Company’s bye-laws.
Details of such rights and procedures to demand a
poll are included in all circulars to shareholders during
the year and the procedures for conducting a poll
will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.
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Poll results will be posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange on the business day following the
shareholders’ meeting.

Deviation from Code Provision E. 1.2 (& reason):
Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman
of the Board should attend the annual general
meeting. The Chairman did not attend the annual
general meeting held on 23 May 2008, however, Mr.
Li Wenjin, as an executive director of the Company,
took the chair pursuant to the bye-laws of the
Company.

The Board recognises that the general meetings of
the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board, or at his absence, an
executive director of the Company, as well as
chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or
in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent
Board committee, will be available to answer
questions at future shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.
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To promote effective communication, the Company RIEEBRER  ARAXREBEMAU

maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk, where www.hisun.com.hk = FIIE AR R EEERE
extensive information and updates on the Company’s NEE - - BEER  DEEREHRAIERZ
business developments and operations, financial R ERBEAMER -

information, corporate governance practices and
other information are posted.

On behalf of the Board REXE=S=®g

Cheung Yuk Fung FE

Chairman iR E g

Hong Kong, 6 April 2009 BB ZEZEALFHEARHA

SEME (FE) ERAT —2ENEEE 37




Report of the Dlrectors
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The Directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Group during
the year were sales of information technology
products, electronic payment products and services,
sales of electronic power meters and solutions,
provision of business process operation services,
provision of information system consultancy and
integration services and provision of information
technology operation value-added services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year
by business and geographical segments is set out
in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 76.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend (2007: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 26 to
the financial statements.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$1,150,000 (2007:
HK$21,400).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share
capital and share options are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2008, the Company had reserves
of HK$96,736,000 available for distribution as
calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) (2007: HK$133,244,000).
However, the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$776,034,000 (2007:
HK$776,034,000) may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 176.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung

KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Chang Jun

Independent non-executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

XU Sitao

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1)
and 87(2), one-third of the Directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Messrs. Kui Man Chun, Xu Chang Jun and Xu Sitao
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
As at the date of this report, each of Mr. KUl Man
Chun, Mr. LI Wenjin, Mr. XU Wensheng and Mr. XU
Chang Jun has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of one year from 1 January
2004 and shall continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either the Company or the Directors
giving to the other not less than a notice of three
months. Save as disclosed herein, none of the
Directors had any existing or proposed service
contracts with the Company or any member of the
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 16 to 20.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short
positions of each Director and chief executive in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO™), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
notified to the Company were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the
Company

RZZEENF+_A=+—"H SEFK
THBHN AN NEEEEE (E& LE
FRHERN ([FHERBEERN])) 2%
D HEROEESTHESRS  EXLALRA
AIRIBE S M ERHIFEI2GFE 2 &R
kB ERRa 2R LABEWT ¢

AATEFREEO00258B T 2EER

Number of shares held

RO HE
Personal Corporate
interest interest Total
Name of Director EERA BARERE NE) R M
Kui Man Chun RER 25,200,000 617,083,636 642,283,636
(note (i) (BF (i)
Xu Wensheng R & 18,696,000 - 18,696,000
Li Wenijin EXE 6,400,000 - 6,400,000
Xu Chang Jun REE 22,200,000 - 22,200,000
Xu Sitao HRE 700,000 - 700,000
Note: MfaE -

()  These shares are held by Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun
Limited, a company which Kui Man Chun holds a 99.16%
interest, and Rich Global Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

() ZEBRMHAEEEFBH Sun Limited (REB &
#7H99.16% 4z 2 A7) & Hi Sun LimitedZ &
& Mt B A F]Rich Global Limited## & -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) The Company

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting,
retaining and motivating talented employees in
order to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Group’s full-time
employees, and executive and non-executive
Directors. The Scheme became effective on 29
November 2001 and unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from that date.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not (together with
all the other Schemes, if any) exceed 10% of
the total issued capital of the Company as at
date of approval of the Scheme unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from
shareholders to renew the 10% limit.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the
Scheme, together with any unexercised share
options granted under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company in
issue, may not exceed 30% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue at any
time. On 18 March 2004, 33,000,000 share
options were granted to certain directors and
employees at an exercise price of HK$0.374
per share (the average closing price of the
shares as quoted in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the five business days immediately
preceding 18 March 2004) with an expiry date
of 17 March 2014.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
17 August 2005, a refreshment of the limit on
grant of options under the Scheme was
approved by the shareholders. Upon refreshing
the 10% limit on grant of options under the
Scheme, 33,305,403 shares may be issued
pursuant to the grant of further options under
the Scheme.

On 26 September 2005, 33,300,000 share
options were granted to certain directors and
employees at an exercise price of HK$0.768
per share (the average closing price of the
shares as quoted in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the five business days immediately
preceding 26 September 2005) with an expiry
date of 25 September 2015.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
28 June 2006, each of the existing issued and
unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company was
subdivided into four ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each (the “Share Subdivision”),
which was approved by the shareholders of the
Company and became effective on 29 June
2006.
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The Share Subdivision has led to an adjustment
to the exercise prices of the outstanding options
and the number of shares to be issued by the
Company upon exercise of the outstanding
options. For share options with exercise period
from 18 March 2004 to 17 March 2014, the
number of shares to be issued by the Company
upon full exercise of such outstanding options
immediately before the Share Subdivision has
been increased from 23,000,000 shares to
92,000,000 shares and the exercise price has
been adjusted from HK$0.374 to HK$0.0935
per share. For share options with exercise period
from 26 September 2005 to 25 September
2015, the number of shares to be issued by the
Company upon full exercise of such options
immediately before the Share Subdivision has
been increased from 33,300,000 shares to
133,200,000 shares and the exercise price has
been adjusted from HK$0.768 to HK$0.192 per
Share.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
11 December 2006, a refreshment of the limit
on grant of options under the Scheme was
approved by the shareholders. Upon the
refreshment of the 10% limit on grant of options
under the Scheme, an additional 43,000,000
shares may be issued pursuant to the grant of
further options under the Scheme.

On 2 January 2007, 43,000,000 share options
were granted to certain employees at an exercise
price of HK$2 per share (the average closing
price of the shares as quoted in the dalily
quotations sheets issued by Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited for the five business days
immediately preceding 2 January 2007) with an
expiry date of 1 January 2010.
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Share options granted to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company or to any of their
associates, in excess of 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, and commences
either immediately or after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the Scheme,
if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the Directors, but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Hong Kong Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.
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There are no changes in any term of the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, no
share options have been granted, exercised or
lapsed. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to purchase or settle the option in
cash. As at the date of this report, the Company
has 41,458,000 share options outstanding.

(b) Employee incentive scheme of a

subsidiary

On 4 April 2005, the Company approved its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Turbo Speed
Technology Limited (“Turbo Speed”), to adopt
an employee incentive scheme (the “Employee
Incentive Scheme”) to motivate the employees
of Turbo Speed and its subsidiary (the “Turbo
Speed Group”). Eligible participants of the
Employee Incentive Scheme include the full-time
employees of Turbo Speed or any of its
subsidiary, including any directors of Turbo
Speed or any of its subsidiary (but excluding
any person who is a Director of the Company)
provided always that such term shall exclude
any person who has tendered his resignation or
who at the relevant time is working out his period
of notice pursuant to his employment contract
or otherwise. The Scheme became effective from
29 April 2005 to 31 December 2008, unless
terminated by resolution of a remuneration
committee formed by the Board to administer
the Employee Incentive Scheme (the
“Committee”).

(b)
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The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed
4,682,275 ordinary shares of Turbo Speed
(“Turbo Speed Shares”), representing
approximately 13.0% of the existing issued share
capital of Turbo Speed, currently held by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Share
options may be offered to any employee
determined by the Committee in its absolute
discretion from time to time by reference to: (i)
the performance of that Employee; and (ii) the
financial performance of the Turbo Speed Group
and the extent to which the Turbo Speed Group
has achieved its intended business plans. The
maximum number of the Turbo Speed Shares
which may be offered to an employee who is
also a director of companies within the Turbo
Speed Group in any 12-month period may not
exceed 1% of the entire issued share capital of
Turbo Speed.

On 8 July 2005, 1,425,000 share options had
been granted to certain directors and employees
of a subsidiary of Turbo Speed to subscribe
ordinary shares of Turbo Speed at an exercise
price of HK$1.922 per share. The exercisable
period of the above share options is from 8 July
2005 to 31 December 2008 (both dates
inclusive). During the year ended 31 December
2006, 1,245,000 share options have been
lapsed. During the year ended 31 December
2008, no share options have been exercised
and 180,000 share options have been lapsed.
As at 31 December 2008, no share option in
Turbo Speed was outstanding.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ igﬁimﬁﬁ&mﬁ&ﬁ}z&
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS 15879

IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained EARARIRBESLKEE 1'm1§ﬂ%3361bﬂ?§
under Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 CEERRERMABR  RZZTTENF
December 2008, the Company had been notified of +—HA=+—H XRQREMNMETIEFE
the following substantial shareholders’ interests and REEBARRNAIEBEITRAS%IIA L2 &
short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s mMKE  cREEETEREXEES
issued share capital. These interests are in addition AREERTTREBH 2 -

to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors

and chief executive.

Approximate

percentage

Name of Number of of shareholding*

Shareholder ordinary shares IR Z B4

RREZRB EEREHE Batk*

Rich Global Limited (“RGL”")** 617,083,636 (L) 27.65%

Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”")** 617,083,636 (L) 27.65%

(Note 2)
(Btiz2)

Kui Man Chun 642,283,636 (L) 28.78%

RER

Notes: Mt -

1. The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares. 1. [UERRBROZFE -

2. HSL is interested in the Company’s share capital by virtue 2. HSL?%ﬁRGLZ100%H§$§ﬁ%$QﬂH§$TE
of its 100% shareholding in RGL, and these shares are B - 2 SROBRBELELBBHSLCRE
held by Kui Man Chun through HSL, a company which B H99.16%Em 2 N Al R o
Mr. Kui Man Chun holds a 99.16% interest.

*  The percentage is calculated based on the total issued * DETIREARARGR_ZEZENEFE+_RA =+
number of shares of the Company as at 31 December — EI 2 BEBITRMD @iﬁ(%ﬂrﬁ
2008.

** Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin are Directors of RGL L REBELREREXNELRERRGLEERREES
and Mr. Kui Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng fE BENEBELEAERBXELRERHSLES -
are Directors of HSL which were deemed or taken to MERA AR P SEEBD T - WAEHE
have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying {’Eﬁﬁﬁﬁffﬂ%%%&ﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬂ%XV*B%Z)S&
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed KR ERBE 2 ERIORE -

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

EEME (FE) ARAFE —2FT/N\FFER
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There are no significant related party transaction
entered by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2008.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
of 10 April 2008 and the circular of the Company of
28 April 2008, the Company had on 8 April 2008
entered into a transaction with Universal Star Group
Ltd. (“Universal Star”) as vendor and Li Ningchuan
(“LNC”) as guarantor and sole shareholder of
Universal Star, pursuant to which the Company
acquired a further 5% shares in New Concept
Services Limited (a 95% held subsidiary of the Group
prior to the transaction) (“New Concept”), from
Universal Star for a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$15.50 million, to further
consolidate its interests in New Concept (the “New
Concept Transaction”). With the completion of the
New Concept Transaction, New Concept has
become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

As LNC is a past director of a subsidiary of the
Group at the material time of the transaction, New
Concept and LNC are connected persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules, the New Concept
Transaction constituted a connected transaction
under Rule 14A.13 (1)(a) and Rule 14A.32 of the
Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

BRERX 5
AERRBE-TEN\FT-A=+—8
ILFERL BT IERBETRS °

BIMARRR_ZEZENFNA+BEHZASE
ARV _ZEZENFOA-_FTN\BZE
KT - AR ERZZEZENFHAN
H E2 Universal Star Group Ltd. ([Universal
Star]) ({fE& & /) K Universal Starz M —
BRERERZ=E)|([F=E)]) EAERA)EK
5B ARANBEERESAREY
15,500,000 7T [A] Universal Starl B 1 &l
REERAR (—ERR A AAEERFE
5% BT ([58l]) S9M5%M

o AE—FEGENIE 2 (1578
251 - @f%%ﬁgﬂx%mﬁk AT A

AEBZZEMBRA -

EEE/\%"S NERXR Sz BREERARNEEN

NAIZAES BB LEWALY - FE X
?EJHZ%%%%Ai CWBCMBIR ZEK LT
REBIE14A13(N) () IE R FE14A32(6 T~ 28
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases

—  the largest supplier 32%
—  five largest suppliers combined 58%
Sales

—  the largest customer 19%
— five largest customers combined 52%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major customers or suppliers
noted above.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) Incorporation of a new wholly owned
subsidiary
On 11 March 2009, the Company incorporated a
new wholly owned subsidiary 4 7 & 5 @ B = 8 %
fiir A& BR A &) (Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Ltd) (“Hunan
Hisun”) in Hunan PRC. The principal activity of Hunan
Hisun is to develop the mobile payment solutions
which will enable consumers to use their cell phones
as a payment device to capture the demand for
innovative telecom solutions, bringing additional
growth impetus to Hi Sun. This strategic move is
expected to create synergy among our
telecommunication solutions, financial solutions and
EFT-POS terminals segments.
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(b) Disposal of Sale Shares and adoption

of PAX Share Option Scheme

On 30 March 2009, PAX Technology Limited (“PAX”)
(an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into the conditional sale and
purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with the Company, Dream River Limited
(the “Purchaser”) and Hi Sun Technology Holding
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Transferor”), pursuant to which the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the
8,750,000 PAX ordinary shares (the “Sale Shares”)
held by the Transferor, and the Transferor has
conditionally agreed to sell the Sale Shares to the
Purchaser at the consideration of US$20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$155.4 million).
Immediately upon registration of the Sale Shares in
the name of the Purchaser, the Sale Shares shall be
re-designated as the PAX Series B preference shares
on a one-to-one basis and those PAX Series B
preference shares shall represent 20% of the total
issued share capital of PAX.

The completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement
is subject to certain conditions as stipulated in the
Sale and Purchase Agreement.

PAX also intends to adopt a PAX Share Option
Scheme for the issuance of such number of PAX
ordinary shares representing no more than 5% of
the total number of PAX shares in issue immediately
after the completion of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement
scheme or the Group or Company set up in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance. Under the scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries
up to a maximum of HK$1,000 and they can choose
to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,000 (the “Mandatory Contributions”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the
age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group is required to contribute an amount to certain
retirement benefit schemes based on approximately
7% to 20% of the wages for the year of those
workers in the PRC. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of those workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any
business constituting a competing business to the
Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of its
directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained during the year the amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 6 April 2009
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Financial Highlights MBEME
2008 2007  Change
—EENE —EELF & &)
HK$’000 HK$’'000 +/(-)
RESULTS S THET FHETT
Turnover LR 1,213,468 779,605 +56%
Gross profit ¥ 552,827 356,838 +55%
Other gains, net H b U %5 F 58 23,022 113,743 -80%
Segmental EBITDA > FHEBITDA
(before unallocated items) (30BRAKR 2 BCIE B Al) 264,549 196,771 +34%
Profit before taxation Br A% Al A 176,553 216,768 -19%
Profit for the year F Wg 135,678 192,521 -30%
Attributable to: FEAG -
— Equity holders of —RRRERFEA
the Company 114,350 184,276
- Non-controlling interests —JEElRE R 21,328 8,245
135,678 192,521

Earnings per share for profit RRvI TR ARG & A
attributable to the equity ZERAER
holders of the Company:

— Basic — B HK$0.05178 7t HK$0.090/% JT -43%
— Diluted — 5 HK$0.051%8 7t HK$0.083% 7T -39%
As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H

2008 2007  Change
—EENE —ETLF &

HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

KEY BALANCE SHEETITEMS T EXE&EXRIER FET TFET
Total equity M AR 1,264,669 1,100,860 +15%
Net current assets mMEBEEFE 954,785 778,581 +23%
Total assets BERE 1,668,616 1,490,745 +12%
Net assets per share EREEFE HK$0.567%& 5t HK$0.493/% 7T +15%
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Turnover EBITDA
EXE EBITDA
2008 2007  Change 2008 2007  Change
“ER\F —ETLF 29 “ERN\E “ETLE 29
HK$'000  HKS$'000 +(-) HK$'000  HK$'000 +(+)
TR TEL TR TAL
PAX electronic products BEETER
and services RiR#%
Electronic payment ERB AL YWk
solutions and products REM 493,589 323,143 +53% 113,922 64,970  +75%
Electronic power meters EFHERR
& solutions REBRLE 350,167 120,472 +191% 58,149 10,792 +439%
HI SUN Value-added BREEERR
solutions and services FRRERE
Telecommunication EABASE 248,105 210810  +18% 135017 124813  +8%
solutions
Financial solutions TREANR 120,608 124,129  -3% (42,539) (3,804)  N/A
TER
Segmental results TEEE 1,212,469 778554  +56% 264,549 196,771  +34%
Unallocated AR 999 1,051 -5% (38,412) 52,805 N/A
TER
Total &i 1,213,468 779,605  +56% 226,137 249,576 -9%
Depreciation il (39,268)  (26,206)
Amortisation 3 (8,772) (3,805)
178,097 219,565
Finance cost BEKA (1,544)  (2,797)
Profit before income tax BEEH AR 176,553 216,768
Income tax expense FERRX (40,875)  (24,247)
Profit for the year ERET 135,678 192,521

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2008

_ﬁﬂﬁ



During year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
records an increase in total turnover and segmental
EBITDA from that of the year 2007. The Group’s
turnover amounted to HK$1,213.47 million,
representing a growth of 56% compared to 2007.
Segmental EBITDA amounted to HK$264.55 million,
representing an increase of 34% compared to 2007.
The strong operating results for the year proved the
success of the Group’s strategy to build a diversified
business model: PAX electronic products and
services and HI SUN Value-added solutions and
services. The increase in segmental EBITDA was
mainly attributable to the continuous growth in our
recurring profits from sales of EFT-POS terminals
and telecommunication solutions, which represented
41% and 20% of the total turnover respectively. Our
electronic power meters and solutions segment is
picking up momentum in the market and accounted
for 29% of total turnover during the year.

Profit before taxation dropped by HK$40.22 million
as compared to 2007, was due to a decrease in
other gains (including gain on deemed disposal of a
subsidiary and disposal of investment securities) by
HK$90.72 million in current year. Excluding other
gains, the profit before taxation increased 49% to
HK$153.53 million compared to HK$103.03 million
in 2007. Effective tax rate increased from 11% to
23% since the PRC income tax for the subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is provided at standard rate of
25% in advance during the Year. Under the New CIT
Law, the operating subsidiaries which are qualified
as High and New Technology Enterprises (“HNTEs”)
are be eligible to enjoy a reduced income tax rate of
15%.

Eﬁﬁ_?g)\¢+_ﬂj+—5¢$§ﬁﬁ
C REBERRE ST KD BEBITDAR =
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TR FIENNG84% o REERGH KL
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RREBAEEIHEES FZ R m#ERE
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MEE R G - (FREEFERN29% o
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With regard to our balance sheet, the total assets
as at 31 December 2008 amounted to HK$1,668.62
million, compared with HK$1,490.75 million as at 31
December 2007. As at 31 December 2008 total
current assets amounted HK$1,352.09 million,
compared with HK$1,156.94 million as at 31
December 2007.

PAX ELECTRONIC PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES

Electronic payment products and services
(“EFT-POS terminals”)

ERAEEEEABERIE  R-ZTZEN
F+_A=Z+ " BWEEREEAE
1,668,620,000/ 70 * R —ZEZE+F+_ A
=+—HE8I%A1,490,750,0008 T ° R EHE
ERER_ZZENF+_A=T—85
1,352,090,000/7C - R_EZE+F+ A
=+ —H8JA1,156,940,0007 T °

BEEEFEMRERE

EFXNERERB ((EFHRIKHE])

2008 2007 Change
—EBENE —TZTLF =)
HK$°000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FEn T

Turnover LR
Gross profit E A
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit g K

Research and development ot 9% K B 2 K AR
costs

493,589 323,143 +53%
191,134 113,939 +68%
113,922 64,970 +75%
112,187 63,540 +77%

13,194 9,657 +37%
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Our EFT-POS terminals experienced strong growth
of 53% as compared to 2007, with a new sales
record of over 247,000 units in 2008. We continued
to be the leader in the EFT-POS terminals market in
Mainland China. Shipments to Mainland China EFT-
POS terminal producers over 200,000 units in 2008,
representing an increase of more than 69% as
compared to last year. Despite the keen market
competition in both the domestic and international
markets, we improved gross profit margin from 35%
to 39%, through introducing new product designs,
maintaining effective cost controls and leveraging
volume growth.

By the end of 2008, the total number of EFT-POS
terminals in Mainland China amounted to
approximately 1.8 million, reflecting a relatively low
penetration rate as compared to most developed
countries. It provides ample room for the expansion
of EFT-POS terminals business. On the other hand,
bank payment cards issuance in Mainland China
continued to surge with a total number exceeding
1.8 billion by the end of 2008. During the year 2008,
card payment transaction volume amounted to
RMB3.9 trillion, representing approximately 24% of
the community commodity retail amount in the
region. In 2009, PAX Technology’s EFT-POS terminals
sales in Mainland China are expected to keep its
momentum, as fueled by the rising acceptance of
card payments from the incessant improvement of
the payment transactions and processing
infrastructure.

AEBNEFINRBREER -+
FAEIERS3%  — T N\FHEERFTL
B + #B#1247,0008 - AEEEEETFRHA
HEFXMNRmEMISREELLA - =
ZTN\F AR AMEF IR EE
FEHHESME200,0006 © ttEF FHB
9% B A TH ¥ B R K B BR T 5 B9 MR R
CBAEEBBSIAFEMRRER ﬁ%
ﬁ&%ﬁxﬁiﬁiﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ
FEH35%FEFZE39% -

BE_TT)N\EFX PEAMEFIMHLK

i Y 48 B 49 2 1,800,00088 © R 2 i3 K
BEATHBERNRAK  FEFIAK

M EBEAERANRE® - Z—FHHE © &
ZEZTTENER - PEAME RTINS
BREFEMT  BEEFI8ER - R
ZENF RIOIBENRRFHIE2EARKES9
BEL HEREALSERTEN24% - R
“ZETFNF BEREAEPEANMAEF
TR E TR AR IE R %B
RIRTHENREXEBE LR XX S
BIEEEREN TERRETHE o
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In addition, PAX Technology further strengthened its
foothold in the international market where turnover
increased by 35% as compared to last year,
representing 14% of total sales of this segment.
Currently, our products are sold to certain European
countries, such as Denmark, Belgium, France,
Russia. Markets in the Middle East market included
the UAE and Saudi Arabia while in Africa, our market
covered South Africa and Ghana. In 2008, we also
delved into the North and South American markets
and Oceania countries. In 2009, we will look for
new opportunities and delve into the North and South
American markets and Oceania countries. With the
first class products and services, we endeavor to
make PAX Technology an international brand
symbolizing top quality electronic payment products
and solutions.

R&D costs rose by 37% with more exertion placed
in development of new products such as our latest
mobile EFT-POS terminals and contactless terminals.

N BERERBERMSE ENEEER
EFIERI5% RO EEFRHEE14%
E—TEERENBIBEMESNES - B/
AEBHEGHETETEMNER - 00 f}
2R AR BEH c FRMEE
FERTEL RS DB AR - AR FEMN - A&
EmBBEEELRME RZZEFEN
FoAREBEMFEARABIEEZREETSIN
RRKAEMNER - RZZZNF - AEEK
SEHRHHE  WEARBLEREEMS
ANERKFMNREK - BFE—REMMRE -

AEBHRIBEEREITEXNARKREEZ
EFEINEREBRARHBIKRE -

XA EF37% EZERRMENE
mA%E - PIMARBNRHNE T NK
iy 1 % IR 3 A 5 R o o
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Electronic power meters and solutions (“PAX EFrXNERRERBARAAR(EEESL]D

Electricity”)
2008 2007 Change
—EENFE —_FTZTLF 24
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FTET FHET
Turnover LXRB 350,167 120,472 +191%
Gross profit E ¥ 145,400 48,178 +202%
EBITDA EBITDA 58,149 10,792 +439%
Operating profit K m K 38,994 3,212 +1,114%
Research and development ot 7% & B 2 K AR 9,309 4175 +123%
costs
Subsequent to the completion of the acquisition of “ETLFERKEEEENIE

PAX Electricity in 2007, our new electronic power ENF - AEENHFFE ?‘t%ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ@
meters and solutions segment gradually picked up R REBZ Fﬁﬁt@l I BB AT 5
momentum in 2008 and continues to hold its leading HELEHMA - —EFENF  AEEBEEETT
market position in the domestic market. In 2008, we RN EEEBNLLEBE LKA
put in place retrenchment measures to improve the PR o

segment’s operational efficiency and cost control.
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Demand for power meters and solutions experienced
significant growth due to the reforms in the energy
sector in Mainland China which increased the
demand for power measurement devices. Power grid
investments, energy supply and efficiency control
became one of the top agenda of the Central
Government’s Eleventh Five Year Plan. State Power
Grid and Southern Power Grid will be investing over
RMB1 trillion during the five-year plan period while
electronic power meters and automated systems/
solutions are prerequisite for the reform.

Our strategic partnership with international leaders
aiming at the overseas market expansion, mainly to
the European and South East Asian countries under
the IEC standards, progressed satisfactory during
the Year. We are receiving orders from diverse
overseas countries such as Sweden and New
Zealand. The need to replace the traditional
mechanical meters with the more technologically
advanced and automated electronic meters and
solutions is rapidly growing.

Increased R&D expenses were due to more exertion
placed to improve the quality of existing products
and development of new series. Likewise, we
consistently launch new and innovative products to
meet the ever-changing technology and market
demand.

BRERMBRTENFRESKEBERTS
HRPREEEEDER MG ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ
EEEERBERFEIZMAE - EWMKE -

R N R ﬁﬂﬁ%*%ﬁﬁ%+—ﬂ
hFFENEIEMEL - - BREWP LD
TERBRAEFTIHHAREAARE —
BRET mMEFRAEREZRBILERESS
RN RRBZARH P AR D ©

FA - AEBEBEREENTSEAEERZY
REEE BRI R EINT IS (AR IECE
ﬁ%@%&%ﬁﬁl%ﬁ@%ﬁ@%Aﬁ
c AEBUBKRERANFTABRE L A
@%l%mﬂi AR EB RN B
BEFAERRNMERTEDNAERERE
BERMFREZE LTt -

MBEFAIENRARNKRRTEZEIRIAR
NHRBEMNEENTRINERFRE

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'$ﬁla@kumﬁﬁﬂﬁ§
mARAE TEELHOMEEMSEHENR -

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2008

— T



Management Discussion and Analysis

e BEEEZFWED

HI SUN VALUE-ADDED SOLUTIONS SEZEBERRAARRRE
AND SERVICES
Telecommunication solutions EMERAR
2008 2007 Change
—EEN\E —TTtHF i &)
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FERT TETT

Turnover X 248,105 210,810 +18%
EBITDA EBITDA 135,017 124,813 +8%
Operating profit we g m K 123,850 115,504 +7%

During the Year, we continued to provide the FRN - AKEEERTPERHREEES
exclusive nation-wide interactive voice response WEFEZEEH([IVR]) e MR
(“IVR”) platform for China Mobile. Benefiting from BETEHIVRITAEEHB ZEFHERIBRE
market growth, turnover contributed by the IVR 246,000,000 ¢ - E — T+ FHEE - K
platform operations grew by 18% to HK$246 million. SER-_TEZN\FHEFBREZLE RN
In 2008, we maintained a healthy operating profit KoM BIBHRH s 2B EEHEIEME
margin compared to that of 2007. National interactive SHEH([IVR]) FEERZZEZTNFF—
video and voice response (“IVVR”) platform provided ZEHEEHE  BXAKEBEEZTELH

for China Mobile has been launched for trial in Q1 IVVRA = &/ -
2009 and we are gradually building up our IVVR
user base.
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Looking ahead, we anticipate more modest growth
in the IVR business in 2009 after years of significant
increase in the traffic volume since 2005. Whilst, we
expect a steady growth in the operating profit
through a combination of operation efficiencies and
effective cost management. In 2009, we will continue
to prudently develop other innovative value-added
solutions and services, such as the IMS user-end
software and mobile payment solutions.

f&%ﬂix ANEEFEH - IVREKKEHBHE —

THFERBFHRBEARIERRE -
F_??hﬁﬂﬁﬁ* ERTENER -
ﬁ%ﬂh AN B TEHR A & s K S B iR iE
EMER BB E R MERSETE
R -RZZEThF - ZIK%@H%%F%IE%
BRIMSAPmEAB LB MBRAR
Hamp s EMAT LR -

Financial solutions TRBRFR
2008 2007 Change
—EENE —_TTLF b=
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FE T F& T

Turnover &R 120,608 124,129 -3%
EBITDA EBITDA (42,539) (3,804) N/A
38 A
Operating loss e EE (57,326) (14,342) N/A
i A

In 2008, the financial solutions’ segment experienced
an operating loss of HK$57.33 million mainly
attributable to incessant delays in certain banking
projects. With the aim to create a more stable,
sustainable and recurring income streams, we have
refocused certain measures to extend our underlying
strength and expertise in providing business process
operations (“BPQO”) services to financial institutions.

RZZBTNF  ERERTREHFRSL
2 [E91857,330,000/8 7T © F EHNFKLRTT
HEHTEEMRY - RTHERRE  HERX
RENWARR - HMKETHEENTE
- HEBEESREXMEALTHERARRA
TREBERHEXBES (IBPOJ) R -
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Our BPO services include payment operation
solutions and other outsourcing services. Total
turnover of the BPO segment grew by 90% in
2008, as compared to 2007. Our strategy is to
enhance our position and become a significant
service provider to financial institutions in Mainland
China. Our relatively significant experience in
deploying financial solutions provides us with
future revenue opportunities as banks and other
financial institutions throughout the world are
increasingly outsourcing certain non-core
management functions to simplify operations and
lower costs. Financial solutions will remain our
core competencies and continue to create values
and opportunities for us to break through into
other value-added service sectors.

OUTLOOK

[t is anticipated that the business environment in
2009 will continue to be challenging. However,
we believe that the steady cash brought by the
electronic payment and power meter solutions,
the launch of IVVR in the 3G era and our low
capital requirements, combined with our strong
financial position will mitigate the adverse impacts
from the global financial crisis.

KREBE ZBPORKB R %iﬁ%%m&ﬁﬁ
DA R E M 9N H) AR 75 o T N\EBPOXERH
miﬁiﬁr_ggtﬁgﬁw% rEE
ZREARSEFHN  KATEALE
BB ERRBEHER AEEREE
CRMBATRLEERYEENLR - B
ﬁaéT%lﬁ% Sz - AARIRKEIR
TREMESRBMEEENIINAETIEZLE
ﬁ%%'u%m%%&%ﬁﬁ$2@ B
FIEF - eRBAFTREBBSNARNEE
WMiZLEN  WEEFGEBEBEREE %
BhE (P B H M I B AR TG B 15 ©

RE

AEBRH_ZETNFHNEHMERRENER
MPEEL o AT ERNE ?ﬁm&&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@
AARBRNIBER M - SGEKAIVVR
mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlmﬁﬁﬁﬁi’EM£$
SEREOMBNRN  XEEBEE/R
BeemeirEENEETE -
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Electronic payment solutions and
products

The electronic payment solutions and products are
expected to remain the major income stream for the
Group in the coming year. Being the market leader,
Hi Sun enjoys over 30% market share and is one of
the dominant service providers to China Unionpay.
With its market leadership and high security standard,
Hi Sun intends to continue expanding its market
penetration as demand for EFT-POS terminals
increase. Contributing to the growing demand for
EFT-POS terminals and electronic payment solutions
is the Chinese government’s move to modernize the
country’s payment system for a more efficient
payment process along with its support for the
installation of EFT-POS terminals in all tourist spots
and commercial districts. Meanwhile, with the new
subsidiary established in Georgia, our foothold in
the international market, particularly in South and
North America and Europe will be further
strengthened, laying a solid foundation for Hi Sun’s
further overseas market expansion. The stable cash
inflow generated from this business segment will
contribute to strengthen Hi Sun’s balance sheet.

EFNRBRTERER

BHARARFRAEFNRBRTRRER
NESAEENETBERARER - ERMS
B SBEEAEBI0RNMHEEER X
STPBRRBOIZRBEER 2 — - BFE
EmBREukare2RE  SEERE
BHSHE F XN EHEATRRIEROK
SHREBEATSZ2ER - PEBFHESE
A REGRREARARNREE - B
REMBRESHMHERLZRE TN
Rimi - B TEFINREHNETFH
RERTENTIEHR - R - BELIE
AR FHBLRR  AEBHEBEKRTS
L EFE R AL =M R BUM) B3 (L 75 15 B 4
—SE2E IRGHBE-FEXEBINTS
EETRENER - UWEXBoMELRRE
ReRA ARt AKRENEERE
% o
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Electronic power meters and automated
solutions

Market outlook remains strong with current industry
trends supporting an increase in demand for
advanced power meter solutions. In view of the
escalating awareness on energy-saving solutions, the
power management industry is demanding products
with high accuracy and advanced technology in an
effort to increase energy efficiency. Moreover, the
Chinese government has implemented a plan to
enhance the rural-urban electricity network, as stated
in the November 2008 - RMB4 trillion stimulus
proposal, that is expected to contribute to the market
demand for electronic power meters. The Group
believes PAX electricity is well positioned to benefit
from these trends which is expected to contribute
to the segment rebounding with a healthy growth
rate in 2009.

Telecommunication solutions

Hi Sun continues to benefit from its agreement with
China Mobile to provide an exclusive IVR platform
which brings to the Group a perpetual revenue
stream. In the fall of 2008, China Mobile received its
TD-SCDMA 3G license. By 2011, major cities in the
PRC are expected to be covered by a 3G network.
Hi Sun expects to provide IVVR platform to China
Mobile’s new 3G users. Subsequent to the
restructuring of the telecommunication industry in
the PRC, it is anticipated that China
telecommunication operators will further expand their
operation and increase investment in the sector,
gradually increasing the competition in the telecom
industry as well as raising the demand for telecom
solutions. Hi Sun believes that the competition and
government investment create greater industry
diversity, bringing opportunities for new products and
high value-added services over the long run.

FRERXRREIERITR
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HRREITEB D R ETETERBE R
ENFRER - HHHATREABEE - i
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Financial solutions

The global financial turmoil has adversely impacted
the economic conditions, especially to the financial
institutions and it may hinder the further market
expansion of Hi Sun’s financial solutions. However,
over the past few years, Hi Sun has adopted a
prudent approach in regards to the Group’s financial
solutions segment. Currently, Hi Sun is developing
the mobile payment solutions which will enable
consumers to use their cell phones as a payment
device to capture the demand for innovative telecom
solution, bringing additional growth impetus to Hi
Sun. This strategic move is expected to create
synergy among our telecommunication solutions,
financial solutions and EFT-POS terminals segments.

Hi Sun is closely monitoring the current global
economic climate and its impact on the Group’s
businesses. The Group is also taking various
measures such as reducing capital spending and
implementing tighter cost control to enhance
operational efficiency, in order to minimize the impact
from the macro environment and maintain profitability.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2008, the Group reported total
assets of HK$1,668.62 million (2007: HK$1,490.75
million), which were financed by total liabilities of
HK$403.95 million (2007: HK$389.89 million) and
equity of HK$1,264.67 million (2007: HK$1,100.86
million). The net asset value was HK$1,264.67 million
(2007: HK$1,100.86 million). It amounted to HK$0.57
per share as compared to HK$0.49 per share as at
31 December 2007.

ERBRIRT R
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1,490,750,000 L) - HEABRLE A
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As at 31 December 2008, the Group had cash and
short-term bank deposit of HK$641.56 million (2007:
HK$569.72 million) and short term borrowings of
HK$15.21 million (2007: HK$42.55 million). The net
cash position as at 31 December 2008 was
HK$626.35 million as compared to HK$527.17
million as at 31 December 2007. The short term
borrowings included short term bank loan to fund
the Group’s working capital requirements.

Capital structure and details of charges

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s short term
borrowings included short term bank loan which was
denominated in Renminbi, amounting to RMB13.46
million. The short term bank loan was charged at
interest of ranging from 2.5% to 8.59% per annum.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s short term
borrowings included short term bank loan which was
denominated in Renminbi, amounting to RMB39.77
million. The short term bank loan was charged at
interest of ranging from 7.13% to 7.60% per annum.

Approximately HK$350 million, HK$99 million,
HK$190 million and HK$2 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollar, US dollar and Euro respectively as at 31
December 2008.

RZZZNF+_A=+—H x5EBERE
K 52 HA R 17 17 30 641,560,000 T (—Z T T +
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As at 31 December 2008, short term bank loans of
HK$15.21 million were secured by:

R—_ZEZENF+ A=+ —H
15,210,000/ 7t 2 R BASR 1T E KA 71 Z 18
EH R

HK$ million
BEAT
The leasehold land and building of a subsidiary AR & —KMEBAR ZHEE i &
of the Company and the corporate BFRBILE=FHERIm
guarantee from an independent third party, SN EERER A A
Shenzhen High and New Technology 2 EER
Investment Guarantee Company Limited 9.49
Bills receivables of a subsidiary — R B R AR EE 5.72
15.21
Exchange rates exposure [E = & b
The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases AEBEAZKE  MERBEINZE

and incurs expenses denominated mainly in US
dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Currently,
the Group has not entered into agreements or
purchased instruments to hedge the Group’s
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the
exchange rates of Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi
may have impact on the operating results of the
Group.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liability as at
31 December 2008.

AEFEUERT ARBRETIME- - B
B A5 3 A 5T 75 1) o B 4 £
TAWHAEEZ EXER - HETEA
RH2ERHREAEART  HTEY
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Employees

The total number of employees of the Group as at
31 December 2008 was 1,631. The breakdown of
employees by segment/division is as follows:

BEEEZFWED

==

AREBR -_ZEZEN\F+-_A=+—RH2ZE
B#HA1631A - EBERDHE SN
RN

Electronic payment products and services BEFINERERE 238
Telecommunications solutions BEARRAR 309
Financial solutions TRBRTR 405
Electronic power meters and solutions BFRERERMBATR 665
Corporate office TtERAE 14

1,631
The Group ensures that its remuneration packages rEERREFNEFE2EEAERS

are comprehensive and competitive. Employees are
remunerated with a fixed monthly income plus annual
performance related bonuses. The Group also
sponsors selected employees to attend external
training courses that suit the needs of the Group’s
businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be
considered as an alternative to operating income as an indicator
of the operating performance of the Group or as an alternative
to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity.
The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to enhance
the overall understanding of the Group current financial
performance. Additionally because the Group has historically
reported certain non-GAAP results to investors, the Group
considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures provides
consistency in our financial reporting.

- mEEZFHERESABESHFE 5
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To the shareholders of Hi Sun Technology
(China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 76 to 175, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % BLED ]

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain OPINION

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In our opinion, the consolidated financial
in the financial statements. The procedures selected statements give a true and fair view of the
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the state of affairs of the Company and of the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s Financial Reporting Standards and have
preparation and true and fair presentation of the been properly prepared in accordance with
financial statements in order to design audit the disclosure requirements of the Hong
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Kong Companies Ordinance.

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as PricewaterhouseCoopers
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Certified Public Accountants
financial statements.
Hong Kong, 6 April 2009
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % BLED RS
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Consolidated Income Statement

el R

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLHFE

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3 FER FAT
Turnover B 5 1,213,468 779,605
Cost of sales 84 6 B 6 (660,641) (422,767)
Gross profit E A 552,827 356,838
Other gains, net H At 55 0% #8 5 23,022 113,743
Selling expenses HE R X 6 (115,302) (70,198)
Administrative expenses THER 6 (282,450) (180,818)
Operating profit 1 & am A 178,097 219,565
Finance costs Bl & A AR 9 (1,544) (2,797)
Profit before income tax & T 15 550 A1 & A 176,553 216,768
Income tax expense Fr 13 B 5 < 10 (40,875) (24,247)
Profit for the year F A K 135,678 192,521
Attributable to: fEfh -
— Equity holders of the Company —ARRIERFERA 114,350 184,276
- Non-controlling interests —JEE R = 21,328 8,245
135,678 192,521
Earnings per share for profit RAAGERFTAA
attributable to the equity holders JEfR&m A 2
of the Company: BERAEF
— Basic —&R 13 HK$0.051%& st  HK$0.090/% 7T
— Diluted —#E 13 HK$0.051/& j;t  HK$0.083% 7T

The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of FEEE17T5E M NEE W BHRR 2 EF
these consolidated financial statements. e

N
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

As at 31 December

R+=-—BA=+-—H
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMEEE
Investment properties KEWE 14 1,969 3,363
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KK 15 147,541 164,817
Leasehold land HE L 16 44,180 43,377
Intangible assets BEEE 17 122,835 122,244
316,525 333,801
Current assets mMENEE
Inventories rE 19 170,063 138,581
Trade and other receivables, JE WBR 3 e H At
prepayments JE U 5RIE -
and deposits ERREREE 20 530,160 405,548
Due from a fellow JEW—K[RF &
subsidiary WEAFRIE 28, 350b) 1,176 1,111
Financial assets at BAFERA
fair value through i N Bk B 1R 2
profit or loss TREE 21 519 34,488
Restricted cash X PR HIIR & 22 8,612 7,500
Short-term bank deposits MHRITER 23 124,300 -
Cash and cash equivalents REeERBEEFEED 24 517,261 569,716
1,352,091 1,156,944
Total assets BERTE 1,668,616 1,490,745
EQUITY E=
Capital and reserves attributable to ZANYNEIY - EE SR =N
the Company's equity holders JE A B AN % R
Share capital g 7R 25 5,580 5,580
Reserves 1 26 1,191,387 1,049,267
1,196,967 1,054,847
Non-controlling interests IR R = 67,702 46,013
Total equity HEmBE 1,264,669 1,100,860

The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of FEEE1T5E C A NEGEEHBHmER 2 EF
these consolidated financial statements. 2

EENE (PE)ERAT —SENAEER 77

LT T



Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEEREX

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEEE 30 6,641 11,522
6,641 11,522
Current liabilities mE A&
Trade and other payables FEHEE?A&/HJ‘@
&~ 5k 1E 27 340,222 301,489
Taxation payable J&E 1~ fRIE\ 41,875 34,323
Borrowings R 29 15,209 42,551
397,306 378,363
Total liabilities BEERE 403,947 389,885
Total equity and liabilities Bk BERRE 1,668,616 1,490,745
Net current assets mBEEFE 954,785 778,581
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRDAEG 1,271,310 1,112,382
On behalf of the Board
REEEE
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
B E E=XE
Director Director
= =
The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of FOEE175E LM s G M WmER 2 HAF E
these consolidated financial statements. e
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Balance Sheet

EEER/X

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FER FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment properties KEWE 14 4,631 4,888
Leasehold land HETH 16 28,827 29,587
Investments in subsidiaries BB RARZIKE 18 276,186 4,136
309,644 38,611
Current assets MENE E
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE &S
other receivables K H b fE kIR 20 359 485
Due from subsidiaries JE W Bt /B~ &) kI8 18 446,958 757,929
Tax recoverable 7t 18 W [B] - 1,056
Financial assets at fair BAFERA
value through i ) 2k &5 18
profit or loss ZERMEE 21 519 34,488
Restricted cash PR HI3R & 22 7,500 7,500
Cash and cash equivalents BekReFEEY 24 162,407 121,113
617,743 922,571
Total assets BEMARE 927,387 961,182

The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of FOEE175E LM NGB MK 2 HP I

-

these consolidated financial statements. 7 e

N
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Balance Sheet

BEEEREX

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—8H
2008 2007
—EENEF —EELF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 FET FHE T
EQUITY Ea
Capital and reserves attributable to PINYNESE - E SR IN
the Company’s equity holders JEAG AR A K R
Share capital & A< 25 5,580 5,580
Reserves (ke 26 872,770 909,278
Total equity g 878,350 914,858
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accruals H b & < 518 2
i ] 27 13,502 10,789
Due to subsidiaries XL NGIE 18 35,535 35,535
Total liabilities BEEHE 49,037 46,324
Total equity and liabilities BmlkBERRE 927,387 961,182
Net current assets /@E_b _ﬁ_ﬁ_ %{E ________________ 568,706 876,247
Total assets less current liabilities EERBRADAE 878,350 914,858
On behalf of the Board
REREEFEZ
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
BRI HE =B
Director Director
=5 !

The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of F85E175H v M Nir & M WmER 2 H AP E
these consolidated financial statements. e

N
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Consohdated Statement. of Changes in Equity

mEREREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-SENFT-A=t-HLEE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

ARRREREARE
Non-
controlling
Share Share  Contributed Other  Exchange Retained interests
capital  premium surplus reserves reserve earnings  FER Total

ka  R#EE  EEEHR  RHREE  HERR REBN  ## it
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR THR TR THR TR TER THR

Balance at 1 January 2008 RZEENE
-A-Bz&8% 5,580 548,330 168,434 34,496 40,960 257,047 46,013 1,100,860
Purchase of 5% equty interest WE-FHEAA - - - (13,292) - - (2242 (15534)
in a subsidiary (Note 34) 5%fR 1E (3 34)
Profit for the year ERg - - - - - 14350 21,328 135678
Exchange differences arising BERIHBLF - - - - 41,062 - 2603 43,665
on translation of the financial BRRREL
statements of foreign subsidiaries LERER
Balance at 31 December 2008 RZEENE 5,580 548,330 168,434 21,204 82,022 3M397 67,702 1,264,669
TZAZt-RzEH

The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of FEEE1T5E M NEENBHmKR 2 EF
these consolidated financial statements. 7 e

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equlty

SERBEEH R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

HZ-Z2%Z

tETA=T-HLEE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

KAFEREEAEL
Non-
controlling
Share Share Contributed Other  Exchange Retained interests
capital  premium surplus  reserves reserve earnings  FERK Total
RE  RHRE EBHER HtRE  HERE REBA  E& &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
ThL THET ThIL FEL TEL FEL TiEn FAL
Balance at 1 January 2007 RZEZtE
—A-BlE#H 4,699 269,586 168,434 156,494 7,688 72,1 - 679,672
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 184276 8245 192,521
Shares issued under BEADABRE 208 15,474 - - - - - 15,682
share options scheme HEESY
of the Company
lssue of new shares REBHERT 581 171,112 - (149614 - - - 22,079
upon the conversion of Bk
convertible preference shares BEREES
issued by subsidiaries 1)
Employee share option scheme EEERETE - - - 27,616 - - - 27,616
- value of employee services -EERBEE
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE-FHBAT - - - - - - 34868 34,868
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBRA 92 92,158 - - - - 776 93,026
Exchange differences arising on BERINIE AT - - - - 33,272 - 212 35,396
translation of the financial BHRREE
statements of foreign subsidiaries LERES
Balance at 31 December 2007 RZF5LE 5,580 548,330 168,434 34,496 40,960 257,047 46,013 1,100,860
TZR=t-H&R

The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of FEEE1T5E M N B HRKR 2 EFR

these consolidated financial statements. g7 °
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Consolidated. Cash Flow Statement

GEEHERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HBLEFE

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 7 FER FAT
Cash flows from operating REEBZRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KERERE 31(a) 139,185 121,722
Interest paid 2 A (1,544) (2,464)
Preferred dividend paid —XWBRE 2N
by a subsidiary BAERKE - (603)
Hong Kong income tax paid EREBREN (352) (4,156)
Overseas income tax paid EREINTIE TR (38,449) (10,520)
Net cash generated from KEEEG
operating activities He F58 98,840 103,979
Cash flows from investing RETZHZRERE
activities
Purchase of 5% equity interest W — B A A
in a subsidiary 5%% #E 34 (15,534) -
Purchase of property, plant BEWE BE
and equipment & 15 (13,942) (34,131)
Purchase of leasehold land BEHELTH 16 (1,092) -
Purchase of intangible assets BERLEE 17 (673) -
Proceeds from sales of property, plant HEME  BEK
and equipment RS IA 31(b) 1,308 5,240
Interest received 2 HF & 4,400 9,303
Acquisition of 95% equity interest in I BE B /B R 5] 2 95%
subsidiaries, net of cash required g TR
Wi F 5 - (154,159)
Proceeds from deemed disposal of 20% & {EHER — K B
equity interest in a subsidiary NAE)Z20%H HE 2
P& A - 78,125
Net cash used in investing activities KRERBAR S F8 (25,533) (95,618)

The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of F85E1T5E M iR MMk 2 A&
these consolidated financial statements. b
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

rERERMER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HBLEFE

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FER FHETT
Cash flows from financing MEEFHZ
activities HeRE
Proceeds from inception AINEHRITER
of short term bank loans P15 A 15,075 12,011
Repayment of short term EEEHBRITER
bank loans (43,439) (8,390)
Issue of new ordinary shares BT TR - 15,682
Increase in restricted cash = PR I 3R & 1% A1 (1,112) (7,500)
Increase in short-term bank deposit 5 EIRITF RGN (124,300) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE (FTA) &
financing activities e FH (153,776) 11,8083
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRkBFE2FED
cash equivalents 2 (B ) /1% sa (80,469) 20,164
Exchange gains on cash and RekREEFEY
cash equivalents <2 & 5 Uz 28,014 21,476
Cash and cash equivalents FUREERE
at beginning of the year EEM 569,716 528,076
Cash and cash equivalents FR|ELREE
at the end of the year =) 24 517,261 569,716

The notes on pages 85 to 175 are an integral part of F8EE17T5E M N BHREKR 2 EF

o

these consolidated financial statements. 7

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

GENERAL INFORMATION
The principal activity of Hi Sun Technology (China)

Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”), are principally engaged
in the sales of information technology products,
electronic payment products and services, sales of
electronic power meters and solutions, provision of
business process operation services, provision of
information system consultancy and integration
services, provision of information technology
operation valued-added services.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 6
April 2009.
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CLIEE: Bk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

2. EREHBERBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and
interpretations effective in 2008 which
are relevant to and have been adopted
by the Group:

HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
Recognition and
measurement’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and
treasury share
transactions?

! This amendment does not have any
impact on the Group’s financial
statements, as the Group has not
reclassified any financial assets.

2 This interpretation does not have any
impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

(b) Standards early adopted by the
Group in 2008

HKAS 27 Consolidated and
(Revised) separate financial
statements
HKFRS 3 Business combinations
(Revised)

2. EXREBHERE @
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e R R MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Standards early adopted by the

Group in 2008 (continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ requires the
effects of all transactions with non-
controlling interests to be recorded in
equity if there is no change in control and
these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard
also specifies the accounting when control
is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity
is re-measured to fair value and a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss. The
Group has applied HKAS 27 (Revised)
prospectively to transactions with non-
controlling interests from 1 January 2008.

HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business
combinations’, continues to apply the
acquisition method to business
combinations, with some significant
changes. For example, all payments to
purchase a business are to be recorded at
fair value at the acquisition date, with
contingent payments classified as debt
subsequently re-measured through the
consolidated income statement. There is a
choice on an acquisition by acquisition
basis to measure the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets. All acquisition-related costs should
be expensed. The Group has applied
HKFRS 3 (Revised) prospectively to all
business combinations from 1 January
2008.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and
interpretations in issue but not yet
effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group:

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKAS 1
(Revised)

HKAS 23
(Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HKFRS 1 &
HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)

HKFRS 7
(Amendment)

HKFRS 8

Improvements to
HKFRSs®

Presentation of
Financial
Statements*

Borrowing Costs*

Puttable Financial
Instruments and
Obligation arising
on Liguidation*

Eligible Hedged Items®

Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement
— Embedded
Derivatives®

Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate*

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations*

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures
— Improving
Disclosures about
Financial Instruments®

Operating Segments*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and
interpretations in issue but not yet
effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group: (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
(Amendment)

HK(FRIC)-Int 13

HK(FRIC)-Int 15

HK(FRIC)-Int 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 18

Reassessment of
Embedded
Derivatives®

Customer Loyalty
Programmes*

Agreements for the
Construction of
Real Estate*

Hedges of a
Net Investments in
a Foreign Operation*

Distributions of
Non-cash Assets
to Owners®

Transfers of Assets
from Customers®

s Effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning 1 January 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5,
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” which is
effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning 1 January 2010

4 Effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning 1 January 2009

5 Effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning 1 January 2010
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Notes Lg_the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations in issue but not yet
effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group: (continued)
The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of adoption of
standards, amendments and interpretations
listed above but is not yet in a position to
state whether these new standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing
standards would result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies
and financial position.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued) 22 #mEKRA (&)
(a) Subsidiaries (continued) (a) K1/B 2 & (&)
The purchase method of accounting is WEeARARAEAEBRE

92

_

used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement (Note 2.7(a)).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

e SRR MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

24

Consolidation (continued)
(b) Transactions and non-controlling
interests — ‘economic entity approach’

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recognised in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a Group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those
of segments operating in other economic
environments.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equity instruments held at
fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary items, such as equities classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated. Financial Statements
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2. EXREBHERE @

24 HNEBRE (F)
(c) EEETF A&

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(il all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component
of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

96

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

FREME - BE MRERE LA
FEMBEBRAR - ELKARRE
WL EEREREERX

EHIEH B KRR EF =R
AREE - LRIBE KRR ST E
B BEEKAST @ AEEZREE
IERRBUYEE (GRERBAM
E)  FTEHMBEERREEBRES
W AER R mER I o

ME - BEMRBIITEAERER
HAE A B FERHAD R A ZE TR
BE -FIERBERET

Buildings 5-10% BF 5-10%
Leasehold improvements 20% MEMERE 20%
Office furniture and equipment 18%-25% WMAERAREZRE 18%-25%
Plant and equipment 9%-25% B K& 3% 9%-25%
Motor vehicles 18%-25% B 18%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

BEZHSGEEMABEHENSE
EREMMAR(WER)

WEEZRmMERBBHE G WE
%8 - B H BR (& 5 B A BORL 2= A AT Uk
O 4% (ffsE2.8) °
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Gains and losses on disposal are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within administrative
expenses in the income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated
Group, is classified as investment property.

The cost of an investment property comprises
its purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the property to its
intended use.

After initial recognition, investment property is
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost of the investment
property over its estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 5%

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

2.5

2.6
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EREFTHERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Investment properties (continued)
If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment.

2.7 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or Group of cash-
generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose.

(b) Brand name and customer list
Acquired brand name and customer list are
shown at historical cost. Brand name and
customer list have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of brand name and customer list
over their estimated useful lives (2-5 years).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. EXREBHERE @

27 BREE (&)
(c) BHFARAE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (continued)
(c) Software development costs

Acquired software development costs are
capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives
(five years).

Costs associated with developing or
maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs that are directly
associated with the development of
identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group, and that will
probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are
recognised as intangible assets. Costs
include the employee costs incurred as a
result of developing software and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised over
their estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXEHEHERBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 28 REMBARAREMEEZRE

and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not WERAAHRNEEDE#N - Bit
subject to amortisation, which are at least tested EEEBFHELEL —RAERT
annually for impairment and are reviewed for fih o A A AT BB BURBE B &
impairment whenever events or changes in EREENSEIIBAEL AEEH
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount NERNZEENRERBR - REE
may not be recoverable. Assets are reviewed Mg - WEEFEA A EEEEBRE M
for impairment whenever events or changes in BERABE2EFHELBRA “ﬂ: NS
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount Bz EENRERR o REE
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁiﬁ—ﬂﬁlﬁlfgﬁz
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s o AREEEREEATERE
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable EXNAERZEE HAGFAEBEZMH
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher HREE  RFGHEEREMS @ &K
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and SERAENATBENERERE (R
value in use. For the purposes of assessing CELEBEM)NREBEKFEDEESR
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest Al e REEI ERZBENESRE
levels for which there are separately identifiable BEESEREEHHRRESSH
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial LA BIEITRET ©

assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXEHEHERBE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets 29 EWMEE
The Group classifies its financial assets in the AEEBESRMEENIER  HAF
following categories: financial assets at fair value Bt AR EREzemEERER
through profit or loss, and loans and receivables. REWFIE - BBUARKBESRE
The classification depends on the purpose for EZEHN EBEERVPHEREETE
which the financial assets were acquired. EemEEZHE  URAESEREKA
Management determines the classification of its HEMTHARARTE -

financial assets at initial recognition and re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting

date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through (a) HAFHETAZFXER/ZEM
profit or loss BE
Financial assets at fair value through profit BRAFEFARNSEER 2/
or loss are financial assets held for trading. BEDNHFEENEREE © ¥
A financial asset is classified in this WHEERNEHAED - Bl
category if acquired principally for the BRI  BRIFTETERTEE
purpose of selling in the short term. WAz B TETAESHE
Derivatives are classified as held for trading RISIEEE - WBRZEEED
unless they are designated as hedges. BERREBEE -

Assets in this category are classified as
current assets.
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2. EXREBHERE @

29 EREE ()
(b) EFMREWE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued)
(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables are included in trade and
other receivables, restricted cash, short-
term bank deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents in the balance sheet (Notes
2.11 and 2.12).

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date —
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
(b) Loans and receivables (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss’ category are
presented in the income statement within
‘other gains, net’, in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement as part
of other income when the Group's right to
receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market
for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm's
length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models, making maximum use of
market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EASTHERE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Inventories 2107 &
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and GFETIAKAE LA ZRFEMRE

net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials and direct labour. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indication that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income
statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
administrative expenses in the income
statement.
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. REVBBRHE

2. EXREBHERE @

QI2BERBEEEY

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as
borrowings under current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.15Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and issue of
borrowings including fees and commissions paid
to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
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e R R MR

i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Borrowings (continued)
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the Company and the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and
established provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.
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2. EXREBHERE @

216 B RIEIE FT 58 ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if
the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision, where appropriate,
is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution AEBAREFEEREREREEE—
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement BB 5 2% 5 1 A T 4 1 B 6 5l 32
benefits scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) iZi%ﬂ#m?ﬁ%‘J MRAEEIRK
set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident 1@ M7 félJ (MRKRETEL ) o IRIKE
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its Bl HERIEEEEAT R XM

employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are B9 J:I:u g ]IEMFE?J%ZEW =&l

made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme. The assets of the
Pension Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as
an employee benefit expense when they are
due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the Group is required
to contribute an amount to certain
retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages
for the year of those employees in the PRC.
The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of those employees of the
Group. Contributions to these retirement
benefits schemes are charged to the
income statement as incurred.

108 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2008

R TE FE SE AN RO AE WL A R A
B o BRINGTEI 2 EERANEE 2
BEODHARA  THBYEER
TRE - AREZEEHKER
BN EELERR AR E R
8 - EAKEEL 2 BX B RHt

SRR REH & 2 R AR
] 2 B B A BE B
RO T

\uti
m

Ny

Z!

P

S
=

2N £2 (B A 32 A 4 R 14 B AR A £
REE - HRRDERRRE ﬁ
8 Eﬂ%ﬂ I 0 E B 7 K
T BER B A B B AR Wz 1
GN °J’EH1 KPR B3R € s HIR
*XT H‘Iﬁgn/u%ﬁ%

AN - ARIERE AR LFE ([
B ) Bz B0 AEBEERS
HETZFEZLIENTRE
20%FEH TR KRB AT 2B H 4
X HEMTBRAREZSAE
BETZRARBMEME - %S
EWEﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁzm,FFE
BEAEWRZRANRE -



Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

. REVBBRHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled,
share- based compensation plans. The fair
value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets). At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over
the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses and profit-sharing,
based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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e R R MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is more likely than not
that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a
Group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Sales of services

(c)

Services are provided on a transaction
basis or as a fixed-price contract, with
contract terms generally ranging from less
than one year to two years.

Revenue from transaction contracts is
recognised at the contractual rates as
services are delivered and direct expenses
incurred.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is
recognised using the stage of completion
method, measured by reference to the
agreed milestones of work performed and
is shown after eliminating sales within the
Group.

If circumstances arise that may change the
original estimates of revenues, costs or
extent of progress toward completion,
estimates are revised. These revisions may
result in increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs and are
reflected in the income statement in the
period in which the circumstances that give
rise to the revision become known by
management.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.
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2. EXREBHERE @

219 ATER (1])

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) Lease income — operating lease
Lease income under operating lease is
recognised over the term of the lease on a
straight line basis.

2.20 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

2.21 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all the attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset. The grant
is recognised as income over the life of a
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depreciation charge.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREHEERE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Research and development 2.22 W&

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred.
Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets
when it is probable that the project will be a
success considering its commercial and

MERTREERZH ZEHEE
REmeliTEmRAZIEE KK A
PRANBE R SEMOIE G 20 - NEBERIE
BEEMKA (B BRET &RH %
WERERM BRAEEFLEE - M3
RASREERZHE - BITHERAR

technological feasibility, and costs can be XHWBERKATEREZABERE
measured reliably. Other development BE °

expenditures are expensed as incurred.

Development costs previously recognised as an

expense are not recognised as an asset in a

subsequent period.

2.23 Dividend distribution 223 E DK
Dividend distribution to the Company’s MARRBREDIRAKRENTEEFD
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the B F& 3R R MR AR D &) B L % 8 HR
Group’s financial statements in the period in N HERBEIE -
which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

2.24 Comparatives 224 Lk Y F
Where necessary, comparative figures have WMHEE  WREFTEEFHE - UF
been reclassified to conform with changes in ERFREZEVNAFANES -
presentation in current year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s operations are subject to special
considerations and significant risks. These
include risks associated with, among others,
the political, economic and legal environment
and competition in the industry.

(a) Foreign exchange risk
The Group'’s foreign currency transactions
are mainly denominated in Renminbi
(“BRMB”), Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) and US
dollar (“USD”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HKD,
USD and EURO, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The
Group is subject to foreign exchange rate
risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a
currency other than HKD or RMB, which
are the functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group. The
Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

As HKD is pegged to USD, management
believes that the exchange rate risk for
translations between HKD and USD do not
have material impact to the group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HKD is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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3. B E B EE @)

3.1 MERBREZE (&)
(a) ZSME R FEz (58)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For companies with HKD as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2008, if EURO had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
HKD with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$144,000 lower/higher
(2007: HK$45,000 lower/higher), mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of EURO denominated
cash and bank, deposit and current
account with related parties which have
foreign currency other than HKD.

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2008, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$53,000 higher/lower
(2007: HK$148,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange gains/
loss on translation of HKD denominated
cash and bank, trade receivables, loan as
well as the current account with related
parties which have foreign currency other
than RMB.

At 31 December 2008, if USD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,179,000 lower/higher
(2007: HK$440,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of USD denominated
cash and bank, trade receivables, deposit
as well as the current account with related
parties which have foreign currency other
than RMB.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because the Group has publicly
traded equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the
investment portfolio is continuously
reviewed and carefully monitored in
accordance with the limits set by the
executive Directors.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in
relation to its trade and other receivables,
and cash deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, restricted cash, short-term
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly
placed with state-owned financial institutions
and reputable banks. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and credit-worthy customers with
an appropriate financial strength, credit
history and appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales of goods and services to the top
five customers constituted 52% of the
Group’s turnover for the year ended 31
December 2008.

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including short-term bank
loans. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group’s finance
department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and
cash equivalents and flexibility in funding
through having available sources of financing.

3. B E B EE @)

3.1 MERBREZE (&)

(c)

(d)
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CLIEE: Bk

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B E e B )
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEREZE (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) mEEZEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s non- TEREBEEE AR THHEZEESEL
derivative financial liabilities into relevant FEHBMSIT - SASERELT
maturity grouping based on the remaining EHMBEABRES REBYEBA
period at the balance sheet date to the Bl e ZRFIBPENESEAELOR
contractual maturity date. The amounts ARIRIREM - ARITIRMEEDS
disclosed in the table are the contractual AR+ ZE A AR B &
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due MEERERMEARR -

within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

Between  Between
Less than 1and 2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
PR-F —-FFEZF ZFEIF IFHUL @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR FET FET TET FET

At 31 December 2008 RZEZTNF

+=A=t-8
Borrowings EE 15,725 - - - 15,725
Trade and other payables ~ EfEH K

H it B 508 334,681 - - - 334,681
Total @t 350,406 - - - 350,406
At 31 December 2007 RZTELF

+-A=+—H
Borrowings f& % 42,551 - - - 42,551
Trade and other payables &1 BR 3t % H ft B f+

HE 278,425 12,836 - - 291,261
Total Bt 320,976 12,836 - - 333,812
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BB HRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, except for cash placed with banks.
The Group’s exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to its
borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. As at year end, all borrowings were
at fixed rates.

The Group’s borrowings are all issued at
fixed rates which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. Management
considers the fair value exposure of the
fixed rate borrowings is insignificant to the
Group.

The Group currently does not use any
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, the Group
will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

3. B E B EE @)

3.1 MBEBREZ (&)

(e) FEmE B
$%E%%A&W%ﬁ$miﬁ
BATEMHENEEBHTE
$%EW%EK&E§EH@@
RITHBEEHRI) - REEBAR
WAMXEHRABEZREER -
AEBRTHNEFBHNBERE
RenEMNERREE - EEHB
mv$E@%*“$ﬁﬂ$ﬂ

CHEFRK G IBENRHEERE

B o

N

AEEZEE 2L E TN K IE
b SAREEAZAFEMNERE
(2 o BIEE R ALK E 5L E E R
REEARZ A PERRIEATE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

3. B E e B )

32 EXRRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity.
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BB HRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BEKERE @)
(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 32 BEXEmER (M)
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2008 and RZZBZENFRZZFEZTLFT-A=
2007 were as follows: T-RAZERBELENT :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2008 2007
—BENE —ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Total borrowings (Note 29) BRBEE (M aE29) 15,209 42 551
Total equity 48R T 1,264,669 1,100,860
Gearing ratio EmBELEE 0.01 0.04

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 A¥EME

R M2 B T % B AN PR R 2 R T ELRL R (B

The carrying value less impairment provision of

trade receivables and payables approximate BEREQNTERS - HEEERM
their fair values. The fair value of financial = é%ﬂﬁfﬁzﬂ$ﬁﬁi$’§@§ﬁﬁ
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated M/i\ BMTEMBRITMSNENE

by discounting the future contractual cash flows BEANBEREMET -

at the current market interest rate that is

available to the Group for similar financial

instruments.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value AEBRAFEFABNIEBEZ 2

MEERFE  DERNGEERMFR®RD
BET MASHREAIZRA -

through profit or loss of the Group is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
without any deduction for transaction costs.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4. BRETTEHFTRHE
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements used in preparing the ARmEEEEMBEHRE 2 Gt R HE - T

ARNBALRLEMEER  BREEHAR
EEBABATHEAELR ZEMHMIE
oo REBFELBBARKZMAEF KKK -

consolidated financial statements are evaluated and
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. RILRE - IEN AT ELBER
The Group makes estimates and assumptions ERGERER o TXATMA 5 RBR&EA]
concerning the future. The resulting accounting EEE T HAVBFEEERAG L RE
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related BEEXNEAFE -

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
may have a significant effect on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(a) FREHRIEER K
LIS NEBETRER  TRFEHEER

(a) Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgement is required in determining

the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

ZHE FERFRBBEET » fFZ2X
HRAEZRREERTEEN - B
RRZBFBERARNCHREZETR
B BAREZESFEETHRZME
T8 AR SE B R4 o

EEEERSKRRA LG RERT
MEARHE R E R AR RS
BER  ARETERUEZERHK
BRZETEHRBAEETARER - BE
ERZERAENR -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4. ARSI RHAE @
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)
(b) Contract revenue recognition

(b) ERWKAER

According to the accounting policies of fixed-
price contracts as stated in note 2.19, the
Group uses the “percentage of completion
method” to determine the appropriate revenues,
costs and work-in-progress (“WIP”) to be
recognised in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to the
service performed and accepted by the
customers up to the balance sheet date as a
percentage of total services to be performed.

Upon applying the percentage of completion
method, the Group needs to estimate the gross
profit margin of each contract, which is
determined based on the estimated total
contract costs and total contract sum. If the
actual gross profit margin of each contract
differs from the management’s estimates, the
contract cost and WIP to be recognised within
the next year will need to be adjusted
accordingly.

In addition, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that, except for the provision made,
there were no expected losses, where the
estimated total contract costs exceed the total
estimated contract revenue, and needed to be
recognised in the income statement.

REBEEEBRER S ERE (WK
E2.19%R)  AEBEERB KA D
ORI EERERXER B A ERERNE
BWRA RAREZIR(EZT
Bl - TRERSEHEZKERLE
ETUETFPEM IR - (HREETT
RGBBEZBEDLE -

EERATIBEDLAR  AREFRZE
Bt B ERZEMNE - RiRAFAR
BRAMARBEERE - HESA
RZEREMNTEEEE ZATT
Al T—FERRBZERKARRER
TERAETEFELAEFE -

SN KRB EERR - BREFLZ
B  BELEBXR(AEAAE
A AR IB AT A RABKA) FR WK
R PR e
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4. BRET AT RAE @

e R R MR

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of receivables

The executive Directors determine the provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables
based on the credit history of its customers
and the current market condition. The executive
Directors reassess the provision at each balance
sheet date.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.7(a). The
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
(CGUs) in relation to the electronic power meters
and solutions group has been determined based
on value-in-use. These calculations require the
use of estimates (Note 17).

Capitalisation of labour cost and
overheads

The labour cost and overheads that are directly
attributable to the services provided are being
capitalised as part of inventories. The Group
has developed certain criteria based on HKAS
2 “Inventories” in making judgement whether
the labour cost and overheads are qualified to
be capitalised as part of inventories. The labour
cost capitalised are mostly salaries of the direct
labour rendering the services and overheads
including but not limited to travelling, marketing
and computer expenses. The amount capitalised
is capped at the probable future economic
benefits expected to flow into the Group. All
excessing costs capitalised are provided for or
written off.
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ERE HtWasEko BHER

AEBEZEEXHR/HEEARRER
B MEMERS  HEBTAERE

KRR - REEFEERSE - =HEE

5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5.
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the sales of
information technology products, electronic payment
products and services, sales of electronic power

meters and solutions, provision of business process
operation services, provision of information system

M T o o S SR AR IR S R B R BOE
EIRERS  NEANDERZIEREARE

consultancy and integration services and provision =T
of information technology operation value-added
services. Turnover and other gains recognised during
the year are as follows:
For the year ended
BEETHEEL
2008 2007
—EEN\F e
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TERT FHET
Turnover BER
Sales of information technology products, HEEAMBRER  EFXN
electronic payment products and services = o MR 509,779 344,234
Sales of electronic power meters HEBTAERER
and solutions MR AR 2 350,167 120,472
Provision of business process REXEBELRY
operation services 23,286 12,282
Provision of information system REEFARGHAR
consultancy and integration services & X AR 7% 83,295 93,607
Information technology operation BB RELEE
value-added services AR 7% 245,942 207,959
Rental income e kA 999 1,051
1,213,468 779,605
Other gains, net H AW s F 58
Interest income FE WA 4,400 9,303
Gain on deemed disposal of 20% BELE —RMBRF220%
equity interest in a subsidiary B 2 W - 43,258
(Loss)/gain on disposal of financial assets HE R D FE N MK ER 2
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEEZ (BB M (6,613) 43,101
Dividend income on financial assets BRAFEN Nr A EE
at fair value through profit or loss ZeREEREMA 432 672
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets BRAFEGA ﬁﬂ‘kl@ﬂﬁz
at fair value through profit or loss SREELATE (BB e (251) 6,155
Value added tax refund REEEBER 16,694 2,478
Subsidy income maL A 2,969 637
Other service income H o R U A 2,946 1,878
Others Hith 2,445 6,261
23,022 113,743
Turnover and other gains B R E M S 1,236,490 893,348
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5. §xX¥ - HtlsRoEER

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) (&)

Primary reporting format — business segments TEERFN—XKEDE

The Group is organised into six main business RNEBDBNKEKDE

segments:

(@) Electronic payment products and services - (a) BFEZNERNMERE -—HEE XM
sales of electronic fund transfer point-of-sale R IR AEERS
(“EFT-POS”) terminals and provision of related
services;

(b) Telecommunication solutions: (b) BBEAAFER
()  Information technology operation value- (i) BHARIELIBERG —RM:E

added services — provision of Interactive =S58 ([IVR]) R

Voice Response (“IVR”) services;

(i) Telecommunication solutions, services and (i) EBAEAFE - REMIEBESR
related products — provision of information — BT EIREERNERSG LA
system consultancy and integration REKRBREMBEEENRKE
services and sales of information e

technology products to the
telecommunication industries;

(c) Financial solutions: (c) ERUERRFER :

()  Financial solutions, services and related (i) EBMMBRAR  RELBEHEE®
products — provision of information system — M B RBITIREENR
consultancy and integration services and GEANERREAMEEE AR
sales of information technology products HEL

to financial institutions and banks;

(i) Business process operations — provision (i) EBEL -—MREEINBERrIAR
of outsourcing services to financial 2o E LR TIR AN AR
institutions and banks with payment &

solutions; and

(d) Electronic power meters and solutions - (d) BEFABHERMBRAIE-EHET
manufacturing and sales of electronic power ANBER HEBEWRER T IR EN
meters, data collection terminals and provision RGBARE -

of information system consultancy services.
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TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5. EXE - - HukaRkoBER
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) (80
Primary reporting format — business segments FTEERFRN-EBHE (FE)
(continued)
There are no sales or other transactions between BEBODPBE 2 RAYEHESEMR S -
the business segments.
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HEZZEN\F+_A=+—HLEFEZ
2008 and segment assets and liabilities at 31 DEESLE RRZZEZENF+ZA=1+—
December 2008 and capital expenditure for the year Ao BHEERBEREEZALFEY
then ended are as follows: BEARRAZHAT :
Information  Telecom-
technology munication  Financial
Electronic  operation solutions, solutions, Electronic
payment value-  services  services power
products added and related and related meters and
and  services products products Business solutions
services  ERME  EABR  EEMER  process E7R
Erxft EBERE 5E BB IR BE operations EHXE Unallocated  Grou
ERRRH % REBER REBER g p RAE i
HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER ThER TER ThER TER ThER ThR TER
Turnover BEH 493,589 245,942 2,163 97,322 23,286 350,167 999 1,213,468
Other gains, net LRy 5,012 - 46 - - 11,636 6,328 23,022
Operating profit/(loss) before A EREBEH 2
depreciation and amortisation Leghl/(B8) 113922 135156 (139)  (55,029) 12,490 58,149  (38,412) 226,137
Depreciation 8 (1730)  (11,167) - (1456)  (13331)  (11,148) (436)  (39,268)
Amortisation B (5) - - - - (8,007) (760) (8,772)
Segment results NELH 12,187 123,989 (130)  (56485)  (841) 38004  (39,608) 178,007
Finance costs AR A (1,544)  (1,544)
Profit before income tax BRFA 15 Bt A 176,553
Income tax expense FERAY (40,875)
Profit for the year ERRH 135,678
Segment assets PHREE 483,916 314,573 2,615 62,247 69,320 516,057 219,888 1,668,616
Segment liabilties YEAfE (131,257)  (29,178)  (1,651)  (34,425) - (141,619)  (65817)  (403,947)
Other segment information: HHBER
Depreciation of property, nE BER
plant and equipment REBWE 1,730 11,167 - 1,456 13,331 11,148 321 39,159
Depreciation of investment property & & 17 & - - - - - - 109 109
Amortisation of leasehold land BETHEE 5 - - - - 305 760 1,070
Amortisation of intangible assets & ¥ & & & 4 - - - - - 7,702 - 7,702
Provision for impairment of ERETAERR
trade receivables . 476 - - 55 - 13,713 - 14,244
Write-back of provision for ROREFSRE
obsolete inventories - - - - - (8,890) - (8,890)
Provision for inventories FERE
- merchandise goods - Péﬁ m 244 1,821 - - - - - 2,065
- capitalised labour cost -ERfLzBI
and overheads _ BARRIERR X - - - 28,881 - - - 28,881
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BE R
plant and equipment kEEB/ (W) 14 (27 - 1 - 917 - 905
Capital expenditure EARX 1,796 5,160 801 3,358 4,567 25 15707
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5, EX¥ - HitWE R o BEH
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) (&)
Primary reporting format — business segments FEZHAIXN -EKDE (H)
(continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December (2T ;ﬁtﬁ +ZA=+—HIEFEZ
2007 and segment assets and liabilities at 31 DHEEE RRZZEELFTZA=+—
December 2007 and capital expenditure for the year A& F Eﬁi BEREBEZBIEFEZ
then ended are as follows: BARRABAT :
Information  Telecom-
technology munication  Financial
Electronic  operation  solutions,  solutions, Electronic
payment value- services services power
products added and related and related meters and
and  services  products  products  Business solutions
sevices  BAIME  EARMR  SBER  process g7l
E¥xft BERE HE RH AR KB operaons EEXR Unallocated Group
ERRRE R% RiEBER REBER FKEE BAFE AR AEE
HKP000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKPO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
TET TER TEL TET TER TET TER TEL
Turnover 2B 323,143 207,959 2,851 111,847 12,282 120,472 1,051 779,605
Other gains, net il 2d 650 - 133 194 - 1501 111,265 113,743
QOperating profit/{loss) before A TEREHF Z
depreciation and amortisation meEn/ (B 64,970 122,453 2,360 (6,320) 2,516 10,792 52,805 249,576
Depreciation il (1,425) (9,309) - (1,786) (8,752) (4,540) (394) (26,200)
Amortisation B ) - - - - (3,040) (760) (3,805)
Segment results PEEE 63,540 113,144 2,360 (8,106) (6,236) 3,212 51,651 219,565
Finance costs mﬁ ERA 2,797) (2,797)
Profit before income tax BAr A& A 216,768
Income tax expense FEREY (24,247)
Profit for the year EREH 192,521
Segment assets NREE 351,438 209,711 4,150 199,715 51,962 467,346 206,423 1,490,745
Segment liabilities PEEE (115,208)  (14,247) (3,060)  (39,413) - (160,664  (57,273)  (389,885)
Other segment information: EHEEH !
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment RENE 1,425 9,309 - 1,786 8,752 4,540 217 26,029
Depreciation of investment property RE N £ E - - - - - 177 177
Amortisation of leasehold land BELhBR 5 - - - - 148 760 913
Amortisation of intangible assets /& & & i - - - - - 2,892 - 2,892
Recovery of bad debts Ebd - - - - - (1,140) - (1,140)
Write-back of provision for YRR E
impairment of trade receivables B EE D - - (2,330) (566) - - - (2,896)
Provision for impairment of B
trade receivables AER R 730 - - 14 - - 67 811
Write-back of provision for BORERE
obsolete inventories E - - (591) (211) - - - (802)
Provision for inventories FERAE 1,419 - - - - 2,149 - 3,568
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BE
plant and equipment R BEESE - - - - - 3,039 190 3,229
Capital expenditure AREX 607 3,895 - 3446 24878 215193 283 248302
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Secondary reporting format — Geographical
segments

The Group’s six business segments operate in two
main geographical areas:

Mainland China — electronic payment products and
services, information technology
operation value-added services,
telecommunication solutions,
services and related products,
financial solutions, services and
related products, business
process operations, and
electronic power meters and

solutions
Hong Kong, — electronic payment products and
South East services, financial solutions,
Asia, United services and related products,
States of and electronic power meters and
America solutions

and others

There are no sales or other transactions between
the geographical segments.

Revenue is allocated based on the countries in which
the customers are located.

LR HtWsERkosEEHR
()
RESHRHR - HESHE

AEEZ NEBEEBSBEAMEE ZEHEL
o

=

B A B - BEFXNERLRE
BB EZLBER

% BRBERITERE R
BRBEER S BR7
RIE - R RBEE
mc XBELEUANE

AERR IR R
N - BEFXNERERE
R TRBRTTE - RIE K&
XEEEM HERAERAREFAE
RER MR R

BRI BZHETEEELEMIS -

WA IREPREZBZR R -

Segment Total Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
EEH TEEE EEHE BEREX
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EENE —EENE —EENE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FER FAER FER
Mainland China R K B 1,074,872 223,448 1,320,052 15,637
Hong Kong, South East Asia, &% HmE - EH
United States of America K H At
and others 138,596 (5,236) 133,405 45
1,213,468 218,212 1,453,457 15,682
Other gains, net, unallocated HuWE#8E A2k 6,328
Unallocated expenses AOEHX (46,443)
Operating profit 4 178,097
Unallocated assets KA EE 215,159
Total assets BERE 1,668,616
Unallocated capital expenditure & 2 Bt & A5 &2 25
Total capital expenditure BARY AH 15,707
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER GAINS AND 5. EX¥ - Hitlhsm R o EEH
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) (#)
Secondary reporting format — Geographical NRESHAFR-HESE (H)
segments (continued)
Segment Total Capital
Turnover results assets expenditure
BEE GECES EERE BARRMX
2007 2007 2007 2007
—TTLEF TR E —TTE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT THET FHET
Mainland China B K fe 698,518 168,858 1,104,553 247,965
Hong Kong, South East Asia 55 REEkEM
and others 81,087 (908) 179,769 337
779,605 167,950 1,284,322 248,302
Other gains, net, unallocated H =558 Aol 111,265
Unallocated expenses AOBMHAX (59,650)
Operating profit R A 219,565
Unallocated assets ROBEE 206,423
Total assets EERE 1,490,745
Unallocated capital expenditure k) Bt & AN B 2 -
Total capital expenditure EENGRE L 248,302
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant SEEETEREYE  WMENRSEE - E
and equipment, intangible assets, land use rights, WEE - j:f@ﬁﬂﬁ?é FE - ERZER
inventories, receivables and operating cash. They EIEES DIEEEITBIEELEMESHE
exclude deferred income tax assets. = o
Segment liabilities consist primarily of operating SEBETIEAEZEERE  ETBREERE
liabilities. They exclude deferred income tax liabilities EFEHRAaENRENPER -
and income tax payable.
Capital expenditure comprises additions to leasehold EABAYBEHHELH  WE  BEL
land, property, plant and equipment and intangible HERBEEZAE  BESBEKLRS
assets, including additions resulting from acquisitions FETINEBES 2 RE o
through business combinations.
Total assets and capital expenditure are allocated EEAENEAE NIREEMEM M D
based on where the assets are located. i o
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6. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses
and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

6. UMEED ZMAX

Financial Statements

. REVBBRHE

REEKRAN - HERIRTTHRERTAZ
MY 2T

2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Auditor’s remuneration % E B B & 2,732 3,406
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BMELKEBTE 39,159 26,029
Depreciation of investment property REMEIRE 109 177
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE A+ b N 1,070 913
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 7,702 2,892
Employee benefit expense (including Directors’ [EERAHX (BRES
emoluments) (Note 8) B <) (Ff7E8) 216,251 182,060
Costs of inventories sold EEFEKRAE 519,108 292,872
Operating lease rentals for land T REBFZEFE
and buildings HERS 10,363 10,664
Operating lease rentals for equipment BEcEEHERES 12,084 11,161
Research and development costs it 72 I A 3 AR AR 22,503 13,832
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER&HE
plant and equipment &5 18 905 3,229
Provision for impairment of trade receivables JE WS AR OB B B 14,244 811
Write-back of provision for impairment & UK BR SO (E B
of trade receivables # g - (2,896)
Recovery of bad debts I [1 £ BR - (1,140)
Provision for inventories FEREB
— merchandise goods — % 2,065 3,568
— capitalised labour cost and overheads —EBFRMbzBIKA
KRR 28,881 -
Write-back of provision for obsolete inventories 1 [0 [R & 75 & # & (8,890) (802)
NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 7. MNEFEBE

The net foreign exchange loss recognised in the

REBEE_ZTT)\F+_-_A=+—HILFE

consolidated income statement and included in RiGEWRmEXPERBG AITEHREAZ AN

administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2008 amounted to HK$2,776,000 (2007:

HK$2,224,000).

T A5 98
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CLIEE: Bk

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. EERAHXX(BREESM=)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)
2008 2007
—EENFE ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Wages and salaries TENFH® 190,161 138,204
Social security costs g REE R A 13,926 7,941
Employee share option schemes — EERBRETE —
value of employee services for EREBERECZES
share options granted k%% B & - 27,616
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKEKA—RTE
(Note (a)) ARG &8 (B et (a) 12,164 8,299
216,251 182,060
Note: Bt et
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) EBHhE-RAEMRTE
Contributions totalling HK$5,541,000 (2007: & #£5,541,0008 THHR(ZEZT L F -
HK$10,228,000) were payable to the fund at the 10,228,000 70) AR FHENTES o
year end.
No contribution was forfeited during the year FAWEBERERW(ZTTLF - &) -
(2007: Nil).
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEEMS
There was no arrangement under which a Director FRUBEZHRESREREEMHNEZ
waived or agreed to waive any emolument during HCCETEF - ®) -

the year (2007: Nil).
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BB HRME

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. EERFMMAX (BREEWE)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (&)

EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Note: (continued) Htat - (&)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEM2 (&)
The directors’ emoluments for the year are equivalent FRNEEWEHAERETEEREENHE
to key management compensation. The remuneration HE_ZZ ) N\F+_A=+—HLFE -
of every Director for the year ended 31 December BHEEEFHMWaLT

2008, is set out below:

Employer’s
contribution
to pension
Discretionary scheme
Fees Salary bonus EXzE k& Total
Name of Director ESfE e e  BMEEA  TEMEXR At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERL ThERT ThR ThRT FAT

Executive Directors HTES

Cheung Yuk Fung RER 360 - - 12 372

Kui Man Chun £EE - 1,200 5,000 12 6,212

Xu Wensheng ByE - 914 1,500 12 2,426

Li Wenjin 2XE - 840 1,300 12 2,152

Xu Chung Jun HREE - 715 1,200 12 1,927
360 3,669 9,000 60 13,089

Independent Non-Executive

Directors BUkHTES

Tam Chun Fai EiRiE 60 - - - 60

Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 60 - - - 60

Xu Sitao SRR 60 - - - 60
180 - - - 180
540 3,669 9,000 60 13,269
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CLIEE: Bk

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. EERFMMAX (BREEWE)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (&)
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
Note: (continued) Ma - (&)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEM2 (&)
The directors’ emoluments for the year are equivalent FRNEEHEEERETZEEENRHE -
to key management compensation. The remuneration HEZZT+F+ZA=+—RHLFE
of every Director for the year ended 31 December BHEEEHWNaLT
2007, is set out below:
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
Discretionary scheme
Fees Salary bonus EEZE A& Total
Name of Director EEHZ we ¥¢  BETL FEMEXR A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THRL THEL T TEL

Executive Directors HiTES

Cheung Yuk Fung REE 360 - - 12 372

Kui Man Chun REE - 1,200 2,000 12 3,212

Xu Wensheng By HE - 847 1,000 12 1,859

Li Wenjin ENE - 840 2,000 12 2,852

Chan Yiu Kwong (Note (i) BRI (M2 (i) - 885 600 12 1,497

Xu Chung Jun “EE - 665 1,000 12 1,677
360 4,437 6,600 72 11,469

Independent Non-Executive

Directors BUFHTES

Tam Chun Fai BB 60 - - - 60

Leung Wai Man, Roger 2R 60 - - - 60

Xu Sitao FRE 60 - - - 60
180 - - - 180
540 4,437 6,600 72 11,649

Note: Bzt -

(i)~ Mr. Chan Yiu Kwong has resigned as Director () BBAEER-_ZTE+E+_A=

of the Company on 3 December 2007. BREAARAAES B -
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BB HRME

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. EERFMMAX (BREEWE)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ ()

EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Note: (continued) Htat - (&)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) BEBREHATL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEBAFEREAGRRHFATRENRE
highest in the Group for the year included four E(ZZTEF 8| - ANFEEMNBRT—
Directors (2007: nil). The emoluments payable to the H(ZEEEF AR AT 2Be T 0
remaining one (2007: five) individual during the year ™~

are as follows:

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe FUREYHNZ 3,120 1,084
Value of services for share options granted EREEREZREEERE - 26,267
Pension cost RIRE AR
- defined contribution plan — REMH-KETE - 24
3,120 27,375
The emoluments fell within the following band: [T R b i N7 = 1
Number of individuals
AE
2008 2007
Emolument band B < 4 51 —EENF —ZEELF
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,0007% 7T -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 2,500,001/ 7t —5,000,0007% 7T 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$7,500,000 5,000,001 7T — 7,500,0007% 7T - 2
1 5
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SEMBHRRME

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BE KA
2008 2007
—EENFE Z—ZTTLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZHE 1,544 2,464
Interest on financial liability portion of convertible —ZX Mf B A A1 %17
preference shares issued by a subsidiary AMEREERE B AE
Bz HE - 333
1,544 2,797
10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. R B HBE XX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate H BN 1F TR DA Al 5T B SR AR AR
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable K16.5%(ZFEE+F : 17.5%) 5t E - J{HN
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has SHEFFIEA A E NG ERR R A
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit EELERERRERB B RTE o
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTT+HHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Current income tax MEFFTEH
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBNEBH 530 -
— Overseas taxation —BHNBIE 45,323 25,625
Deferred income tax EEFTIFHR (5,478) (2,258)
Underprovision in previous year BEFERETE 500 880
Income tax expense FTiS B 40,875 24,247
Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries of H-ZTEN\F—A—HBE XAFMBA
the Company are subject to the corporate income RIEHMEBRARRZRRGR _ZZLF
tax in accordance with the new China Income Tax —A+tARBBBZHPECEMSBEM
(“CIT”) Law as approved by the National People’s MEZLEMGH - BEFHRALEMG
Congress on 16 March 2007. According to the new BERBEEN  AEEWBAREAZ
CIT Law and the relevant regulations, the new FOEMEBMEAE25% - KB RQARE
enterprise income tax rate applicable to the WHEA 2 EBERERI

subsidiaries of the Group is 25% unless preferential
rates are applicable in the cities where the
subsidiaries are located.
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B

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the new CIT Law, operating subsidiaries of
the Company which are qualified as High & New
Technology Enterprises are eligible to enjoy a reduced

income tax rate of 15%.

e B R R MR

10. MBI B X @)

BEFPECEMSHEE e
CEERZARGELENBARATER
15% 2 AR TS R K -

2008 2007

—EENE —ZTTLHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Profit before income tax B BT 15 5 Al g A 176,553 216,768

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EREEBEREE

applicable to profits i M) 2 R R R

in the respective countries AEZHIA 24,115 22,342

Effect of changes in tax rates MEEH I XE (2,179) -

Income not subject to taxation BAFRKA (7,829) (17,472)

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes BRBME MM 2FAET 7,144 14,189

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ®)ABARBERZHIBEEE (1,385) (539)

Unrecognised tax losses RERMIBEE 20,509 4,847

Underprovision in previous year BEFERETR 500 880

Income tax expense FrisfiA X 40,875 24,247
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e R R MR

11.LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE MARFEBRFEAELEER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
The loss attributable to equity holders of the RABIERFFE AL E1E 36,508,000/
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of TT(ZZTZ A 1 2461,00087T) RARA A
the Company to the extent of HK$36,508,000 (2007: MBHmERER -

HK$2,461,000).

12. DIVIDENDS 12.RE
No dividend has been paid or declared by the FA - ARAVERNHEREMKRE (=
Company during the year (2007: Nil). TTLF | o
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.8 & F|
(a) Basic (a) B
Basic earnings per share is calculated by BRERRFERNRARERZFEA
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders FEAR 0 AU Bk 7 N B 24T B A0

of the Company by the weighted average BEETH -

number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLHF
Profit attributable to equity holders ZNYNECIE: E: SRS DN
of the Company (HK$’000) FEAE & A (T L) 114,350 184,276
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITERRINE
in issue (thousands) & (FRR) 2,231,973 2,050,870
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) BREXRZN (BRBT) 0.051 0.090
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive shares. The Company has
two categories of potentially dilutive shares:
convertible preference shares issued by
subsidiaries and share options. The convertible
preference shares issued by subsidiaries are
assumed to be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company and the net profit is adjusted
to eliminate the interest expense less the tax
effect. All convertible preference shares issued
by subsidiaries have been converted into
ordinary shares of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2007. For the share
options, a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that would have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average
market share price of the Company’s shares
during the current year) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to
these outstanding share options. The number
of shares calculated as above is compared with
the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2008 is the same as the basic
earnings per share as the conversion of potential
ordinary shares in relation to the outstanding
share options would have an anti-dilutive effect
to the basic earnings per share.

e SRR MR

13. 8RB R @)
(b) #58

IR B R TR S B A
Bl BRTAED BT E R
HE o KA EEHERN D AW
B HBATRT I ARBRELERE
BERRHE o B A ﬂ%ﬁZﬂ@%@ﬁ
BEROEBARATERR ¥
ﬁ%mﬂuﬁ%ﬂéﬁﬁm%ﬁ%%
B R/E-_TTLE+-_A=+—H
WLEFE - FRAMEBATET Y TR
BB iR AR D B LR o BB
FETTTE » 1R 1 SR 17 150 BB G HE B T 220
B EMEESE  UETARAT
E(EAARTRMEERNZ FHH
B)BBEZBMEE - & X
G R BN E Ty E R 5 B A A T 4
B e O 3677 2 IR0 B E VELL B -

BE_ZTTN\F+_A=1T—BL*F
BZEk#TRNEGRELRRN M
[ DR E R RITERRES
Az BEEEBERSEHERENET
EE&T&%Z%%C’
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CLIEE: Bk

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13.8 R & F @)
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) #8 (&)
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended BE_ZTTEF+_A=1T—BL#F
31 December 2007 is calculated as follow: ;Z GRREERA JET 57 A
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-HA=t+-—8H
ILtFE
2007
—ETLF
Profit attributable to equity holders EN/NSIE: S SRS DN
of the Company (HK$’000) JE 5% 7 (F&7T) 184,276
Interest expense on convertible preference —RMBARIEITZ
shares issued by a subsidiary (HK$’000) AR E LR S (FET) 333
Profit used to determine diluted earnings RiEETERESAN 2
per share (HK$’000) @ A (T 7T) 184,609
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITERRINE
in issue (thousands) FHE (FR) 2,050,870
Adjustments for BT SIEEL %
— assumed conversion of convertible —BEREBHEA
preference shares issued by subsidiaries ?é‘fTZ—Hﬁéﬂx
(thousands) B iR (F’&) 124,799
— share options (thousands) — B (1) 40,619
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AEEREERNZ
for diluted earnings per share T 5 A N A
(thousands) FHE (FR) 2,216,288
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ per share) EREERN (BRET) 0.083
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e SRR MR

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REME
Group Company
KE ¥ NN
Buildings Buildings
BF B¥
HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FET
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEZEtHF—-—H—H
Cost B AR 3,548 5,157
Accumulated depreciation Z2EE (8) (11)
Net book amount FREFE 3,540 5,146
Year ended 31 December 2007 BEz-ZEZt5+=AH
E+—HALEE
Opening net book amount Y R EFE 3,540 5,146
Depreciation e (177) (258)
Closing net book amount B BREFE 3,363 4,888
At 31 December 2007 R=-Z2Z2LtHF+=-A=+—H
Cost B AR 3,548 5,157
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (185) (269)
Net book amount FREFE 3,363 4,888
At 1 January 2008 R=-ZEENF-HF—H
Cost X AR 3,548 5,157
Accumulated depreciation RETE (185) (269)
Net book amount REFE 3,363 4,888
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-ZZEN\F+=H
=E+—HLEHEE
Opening net book amount Y R EFE 3,363 4,888
Transfer to property, plant EAWE  BE
and equipment (Note 15) A (3E15) (1,285) -
Depreciation e (109) (257)
Closing net book amount B BREF B 1,969 4,631
At 31 December 2008 R-BENF+=-AR=+—H
Cost (DN 2,193 5,157
Accumulated depreciation REINE (224) (526)
Net book amount FREFE 1,969 4,631
Fair value (Note below) NYEE MEHT) 2,420 5,695
Note: K &
The fair value of the investment properties located at 1t BE_FTN\F+_A=+—H URIERm
R TEEBKRKE7THRBEH RNE15-17# as at 31 YRR B IEE67TIRIRED RN E15- 172 218 B3
December 2008 was assessed by the independent and ZAEEE ABITEESBERGHBEESER
professionally qualified valuer, Vigers Appraisal & BEENGEBEEAERAR  HERERMISZ2HT
Consulting Limited based on current prices in an active EREE -
market.
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CLIEE: Bk

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. RE Y ¥ @)
(continued)
Interests in investment properties at their net book R ERERIEEmEESTWOT

values are analysed as follows:

Group Company

rEE ¥ NN
2008 2008
—EENE ZEENFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FHExT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: BABEIN -

Leases of between 10 to 50 years B10E 50FHLIEHH 1,969 4,631
The following amounts have been recognised in the RIEAWNFZRER 2SN T ¢
consolidated income statement:

Group
rEH
For the For the

year ended year ended
31 December 31 December

BE+=-A ®B=t+=A

=+-—H =+-—H
LFE LtFE
2008 2007
—BENE —ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHETT
Rental income e WA 999 1,051
Direct operating expenses arising HREEWAZIRE Y
from investment property that FFTEEEELERX
generated rental income (491) (1,014)
There were no direct operating expenses arising from FA - WESRASWAZIREEL &
investment property that did not generate rental EEANEELERAX -
income during the year.
The period of leases whereby the Group or the REBIARAFREBELEROBEHERE
Company leases out its investment property under ME BN FIFE2EF

operating leases ranged from 1 to 2 years.
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e B R R MR

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. R E Y % @)
(continued)
At 31 December 2008, the future aggregate minimum RZZEZENF+ZA=+—8 " REFA
rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating BEEEHOzARRZEEKHE AN
leases are as follows: o
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—E2ENE _—TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FABT
Not later than 1 year —F K 760 561
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —F A F{EHEF N 342 -
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e R R MR

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15.9% RERRE
EQUIPMENT
Group
58
Office
furniture
and
Leasehold equipment Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements NS equipment vehicles Total
BT HENEEE FARRE BERRE "E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TER TER FEL TAER FEL
At 1 January 2007 W-BEtE-F-R
Cost A 7,643 5,383 88,712 998 6,438 109,174
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (689) (4,460) (23,334) (598) (4,140) (33,215)
_Netbookamourt ______ BEEE 690 __ 25 _ 66358 ___ M0 ___ 228 7599
Year ended 31 December 2007 HZ-ZZ+tE+T=A
=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount HBERSE 6,960 923 65,378 400 2,298 75,959
Exchange differences BEHES 1,869 62 5,160 761 424 8,276
Additions NE - - 30,632 819 2,680 34,131
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B L 43,923 - 6,525 19,772 6,489 76,709
Disposals (Note 31(b)) & (i 31(b) (3,732) - (57) - (440) (4,229)
Depreciation il (1,631) (252) (20,711) (1,820) (1,615) 26,029)
_Closngnetbookamount ____BREERE___ 49 _ 8T _19g2 9% _164p1
At 31 December 2007 RZBBLE+ZA=1-H
Cost A 48,712 5,459 133,086 22,464 15,620 225,341
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (1,329) (4,726) (46,159) (2,532) (5,784) (60,524)
_Netbookamourt ______ BEEE ________ e 8T _19g2 9% _164p1
Year ended 31 December 2008 HZ-FZENF+=A
St-RLEE
Opening net book amount HONEREE 47,389 733 86,927 19,932 9,836 164,817
Exchange differences ERZER 2,540 50 4,660 1,084 535 8,869
Additions AE 819 - 9,365 409 3,349 13,942
Transfer from investment BEERENE (Wit14) 1,285 - - - - 1,285
properties (Note 14)
Disposals (Note 31(b)) & (i31(b) - - (152) - (2,061) (2,213)
Depreciation ik (3,162) (274) (28,142) (4,439) (3,142) (39,159)
_Closngnetbookamount _ _ __BAEERE_______ 4eaM_____ 9 T26% 1686 85T w7
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+ZA=1-H
Cost R 53,535 5,525 146,327 24,139 15,006 244,532
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (4,664) (5,016) (73,669) (7,153) (6,489) (96,991)
Net book amount FESE 48,871 509 72,658 16,986 8,517 147,541
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e SRR MR

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. 9% - BENRRKE @
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Depreciation expense of HK$24,679,000 (2007: WEMZH24,679,0008 L (ZFTZTLF :
HK$17,116,000) has been expensed in cost of sales 17,116,000 7T) ERNHEK AN IH + &
and HK$14,480,000 (2007: HK$8,913,000) in 14,480,000 7C (ZEF 4 : 8,913,000
administrative expenses. BIL) RITEHERAXH -
As at 31 December 2008, bank borrowings are ZEENF+ZA=+T—H ' RITEXK
secured on buildings with a total net book amount ELAEE@%@%@Z%A,&8,OOO/%TEZ7F§—‘FVE
of HK$4,818,000 (2007: 18,845,000) (Note 29). B (ZZZEF : 18,845,000 1) (Fisx
29)
Company
KA
Office furniture and equipment
MAERARRE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEZtHE—-—H—H
Cost A 12
Accumulated depreciation REE (11)
_ Netbookamount —__ __ FEEFE . 1
Year ended 31 December 2007 EEZ_Z2+tH+-_A=+—-RALFE
Opening net book amount HR¥) B F (B 1
Depreciation e (1)
_ Closing net book amount % FIAMRESE L _______ -
At 31 December 2007 R-Z2ZFtF+=-A=+—H
Cost PR 12
Accumulated depreciation E i (12)
_ Netbookamount —__ ___ FWEFE . ___ -
Year ended 31 December 2008 BEZ_2ZNF+_-_A=+—-RALFE
Opening net book amount ER¥) AR E ¥ B -
Depreciation e -
_ Closing net book amount __ ___ FIRBRERE L _______ .
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZ2ZENF+=-A=+—H
Cost AR 12
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (12)
Net book amount REFE -
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CLIEE: Bk _

16.LEASEHOLD LAND 16. HHE L+ b
The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent AEBREE TN ESEENBEHLE
operating lease prepayments and their net book MAHNRIE - AREFEITBOT

amounts are analysed as follows:

Group Company
REE b /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ETtF —EZINE —ETtF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
TER FET FET FETT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: BAEIN -
Leases of between 10 to R10E 505 7
50 years HOKE 45,899 44,032 30,378 30,378
Amortisation By (1,719) (655) (1,551) (791)
Net book amount RmEFE 44,180 43,377 28,827 29,587
The movement of the net book amount for leasehold HETHZEREmMFEEESOT
land is as follows:
Group Company
REH b NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ETtF —EENE —ETtF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET TER FHEIL
Net book amount at beginning ~ F B EFE
of year 43,377 30,559 29,587 30,347
Additions NE 1,092 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE T /&8 A A - 17,448 - -
Amortisation i (1,070) (913) (760) (760)
Disposals (Note 31(b)) HE (B #31(b) - (4,240) - -
Exchange difference e Z% 781 523 - -
Net book amount at end of year F K BEHE FE 44,180 43,377 28,827 29,587
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17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 17 8B EE-—XKE
Capitalised
software
development
costs
Customer EEZEXR
Goodwill Brand name list 284 Total

HE mEER EFEE  RRAX am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TERn TR TERT

Year ended 31 December BE_ZZ+F+-A=t-H
2007 LtEE

Opening net book amount BEEFE - - - - -
Exchange differences ER 4,137 126 148 7 5,122
Acquisition of subsidiaries e 1= PNS 91,770 4,120 4,120 20,004 120,014
Amortisation charge BiHs - (858) (344) (1,690) (2,892)
Closing net book amount HREEFEE 95,907 3,388 3,924 19,025 122,244
At 31 December 2007 R-EELF+-A=+—H

Cost K AE 95,907 4,246 4,268 20,715 125,136
Accumulated amortisation ESg 3 - (858) (344) (1,690) (2,892)
Net book amount EHFE 95,907 3,388 3,924 19,025 122,244
Year ended 31 December BE_ZZN\F+-A=t—-H

2008 tHEE

Opening net book amount HUEEFE 95,907 3,388 3,924 19,025 122,244
Exchange differences BN ER 6,206 170 212 1,032 7,620
Additions nE - - - 673 673
Amortisation charge BiHE - (2,240) (896) (4,566) (7,702)
Closing net book amount HAEmFE 102,113 1,318 3,240 16,164 122,835
At 31 December 2008 R-EENFE+-A=+—H

Cost A E 102,113 4,520 4,520 22,625 133,778
Accumulated amortisation ZEt - (3,202) (1,280) (6,461) (10,943)
Net book amount FEZE 102,113 1,318 3,240 16,164 122,835
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17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

(continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating
units (CGUs) identified according to business
segment. As at 31 December 2007 and 2008,
goodwill is solely allocated to the electronic power
meters and solutions group in the mainland china.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows within the
five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below. Zero growth rate is
assumed for cash flows beyond the five-year period.
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the electronic meters and
solutions business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations are as follows:

Gross margin 30-38%
Growth rate 20-35%
Discount rate 15%

Management determined budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development. The weighted average
growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant segments.

During the year, no intangible asset was considered
impaired by the management.
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

BREBARAZRERER

AND DUE FROM/(TO) (FEAS) MY B A TR IE
SUBSIDIARIES
Company
¥ /N
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEMEE  HAR 276,186 4,136
Due from subsidiaries AN NG E S
(Note below) (2 FXMat) 446,958 757,929
723,144 762,065
Due to a subsidiary e — R B A RRIE
(Note below) (R FXHtaz) (35,535) (35,535)
687,609 726,530

In May 2008, the Company capitalised an amount
due from a subsidiary of HK$255,000,000 as
investment in a subsidiary, upon the purchase of
non-controlling interests as disclosed in note 34.

Note:

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free,
and repayable on demand.

RZZFZNFRA AR RUEIEER
g (RHE34ETE) - HEKHE AR
FKIE 255,000,000 L EFTEX - tEAWEB
RNAIZEE

Mt -

HfE AR s ERGEHRSEEN RERRE
B ERS -

BB (FE)ERAT 22N \EFH 149

BN B —



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

i

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND DUE FROM/(TO)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2008:

Place of

18. RMBARA 2 RER B~
(FEAS) Bt 1B A Bl FRIR (@)
RZEENF+_A=+—H ' xEWESB
NAIZHBWT

Particulars
Principal activities of issued

incorporation and and place of share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
AR 3Lt B TEEBR ERITRAE
=L REEERER EXNH dMERFE ST $
IREGEEEEERMERRAF PRC, limited liability Provision of financial HK$100,000,000 100%
(Beijing Hi Sun Advanced company and banking 100,000,000/ 7T
Business Solutions Information HE  BRAA solutions and
Technology Limited) services in PRC
EHERE SR RRIT
S EYE
LtReBERREEEM PRC, limited liability Provision of HK$80,000,000 100%
BRAHE company telecommunication 80,000,0005% 7T
(Beijing Hi Sunsray Information HE BRAHE solutions, services,
Technology Limited) related products and
information technology
operation value-added
services in PRC
EHREREEA
BRAE  BRBR
HBEERNRER
REESEERY
Emerging Technology Limited The British Virgin Investment holding 7,692,308 ordinary 100%
(“Emerging Technology”) Islands (“BVI"), in PRC shares of US$1 each
limited liability EHEftE 7,692,308/ F Mk E A
company BEER 1ZETZEBR
RERUES
BRAA
Hi Sun (BVI) Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding in 2 ordinary shares of 100%'
company Hong Kong and PRC US$1 each
EBELES EERRTE RBREMBIET
BRAA REREER 2 EEK
Hi Sun Development Hong Kong, limited Provision of 2 ordinary shares of 100%
Management Limited liability company management services HK$1 each
EBREERERAA % ARAA in Hong Kong 2REREEIET
EERRHEEERY 2 BB
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Turbo Speed Technology Limited
(“Turbo Speed”)

BEFEREM ORI BERAA
(Pax Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited)

Max Hero Group Limited

New Concept Services Limited

Hangzhou PAX Electricity
Technology Limited
MMBEEENRMARAR
(formerly known as
“Hangzhou Baifu Holding
Company Limited”)

(AN EEERERRA])

BVI, limited liability
company

EERUKES -
BRARA

PRC, limited liability
company
HE - BERAR

BVI, limited liability
company

RBRZES  ARAA

BVI, limited liability
company

SEELHE  ARAT

PRC, limited liability
company
HE BRAA

Investment holding
in PRC
EHBERERE TR

Sale of electronic
payment products
and services
in PRC

ERBHEEET
IHERRERH

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
EEENEREER

Investment holding
in PRC
ERELEREER

Investment Holding
in PRC
EREREREER
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. AMBARIZRERER
AND DUE FROM/(TO) (FEAS) MY B A R FRIE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued
incorporation and and place of share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
o Il AR 3L 3t B TEXBR ERITRA
£ REERBRER S AMERFE PR #5 #E 2
Hi Sun Technology Holding Limited Bermuda, limited Provision of financial 168,070,000 ordinary 100%
SEEBEERER DR liability company services and related shares of HK$0.1
BRE ARRQH products in each
Hong Kong 168,070,000/%
EERRESR BREEET
R RAEEE R 2 E R
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited Sales of electronic 35,000,000 ordinary 80%
BEREERAT liability company payment products shares of HK$1 each
5% BRAA and services in 35,000,000 & X & &
Hong Kong 1B Tz EBR
EEBHEEFIN 8,750,000 preference
EmKkR® shares of HK$1 each

8,750,000 § Ik E &
TR BB

35,897,440 ordinary 100%
shares of US$0.1 each
35,897,440 B A E
01ET 2 LBR

HK$50,000,000 80%
50,000,000/ 7T

1 ordinary share of US$1  100%'

IREEIXRTZEBK

100 Ordinary share
of US$1
100 mE1E L2 Ei®RK

100%’

RMB27,500,000 100%
AR #27,500,0007C
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XB - ARRA

services in U.S.A.
EXBAHEEFIA
Em kR

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RK B 2 ﬁZEﬁ&EELI&/
AND DUE FROM/(TO) (FEAT) Bﬁ BRI (@)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars
Place of Principal activities of issued
incorporation and and place of share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
1 AR 3L i B TEXBR RORE
8 REEERER EEE HMEARFES ks
Pacific Sheen International Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment Holding HK$3,900,000 100%
EIEHBEER AR liability company in PRC 3,900,0007 7t
EE - BRAAE EHBEREREER
Hangzhou PAX Electronic PRC, limited liability Manufacturing and sales  RMB50,000,000 100%
Technology Limited company of electronic power AR #50,000,0007T
MMEEEFEMAERAF FE - BERAF meters and solutions
in PRC
EHB4EEREES TR
BRRRBRAR
Hangzhou PAX Information PRC, limited Design of electronic RMB3,400,000 100%
Technology Limited liability company power meters in PRC AR #3,400,0007T
MNBEEGERRMBRAR FE - BRAR EHRERFAEFAERR
Hangzhou Fushun Information PRC, limited liability Properties Holding US$3,500,000 100%
Technology Company Limited company in PRC 3,500,000 7T
MMEIREBRIMER AR hE BRAF ETBEBENE
Perfect Ally Investments Limited Samoa, limited liability Sublicense of media 100 ordinary 75%
company rights in PRC shares of US$1
EEDRES ARLA BRI 100/ E &
REEE 1ZT 2 EBR
Foxman Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited Dormant 1 ordinary share 100%'
MABEBERRA liability company Tmg of HK$1 each
B ABRAT 1REREEIET
2L AR
PAX Electric International Limited Hong Kong, limited Sales of electronic power 10,000 ordinary 100%
ABESNEEBEERAA liability company meters and solutions shares of HK$1 each
% BRAR in Hong Kong 10,000/ & R E &
EEEHEEFA BT ERR
BRRRBRAR
PAX Technology, Inc. U.S.A. limited Sales of electronic US$1,000.00 80%
liability company payment products and  1,000.00% T

1 Shares held directly by the Company. ' RAAREERFBEZRD

152

TS

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2008




Notes to the Consolidated. Financial Statements

et GAMBEEME

19.INVENTORIES 19. 7€
Group
RE
2008 2007
—BENFE Z—EETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Raw materials R M ¥ 51,316 39,005
Work in progress EER 19,597 36,782
Finished goods RIAK o 99,150 62,794
170,063 138,581
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense BREAIEFTAHEEKREANTFEK
and included in cost of sales amounted to K 3Z 519,108,000 Tt (Z T Z L F
HK$519,108,000 (2007: HK$292,872,000). 292 872,000/ JT) °
20. TRADE AND OTHER 20 EWEER R HMEWRIE -~
RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS TREREZES
AND DEPOSITS
Group Company
rEEH FiNUNE]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE o ;3 —EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT FET TER FAT
Trade receivables (Note (a))  FEUBR X (Kiit(a)) 328,443 250,962 - -
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEWE & (Hfat (b)) 161,930 95,403 - -
Less: provision for impairment & : J& 4 2 I8 B B
of receivables (Note (c)) B (Wi (c) (16,021) (1,615) - -
474,352 344,750 - -
Prepayments, deposits and ~ BN HE « & &
other receivables H A e W 5018 55,808 60,798 359 485
530,160 405,548 359 485
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20. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other
receivables are denominated in the following

20. EW AR =

ﬁmﬁ&&ﬁ%)

i

“‘!

IR HAEWRIE - T

RSB 7 YRR K A B U R IR 2 BRTE

BIVATIIEETIE

currencies:

2008 2007
—BENE Z—EETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
HK dollar BT 4,815 10,655
Renminbi AR 490,583 377,578
US Dollar ETT 34,004 17,315
Euro B 7T 758 -
530,160 405,548

Note (a): Trade receivables Wit (a) : FEUM IR
The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range from ARG T %3%15 BAZIEEHHZTE=180AT

0 to 180 days. At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables was as follows:

ZoR-BEENER=

= ZEEAEFE+_HA=1—
B FEJ%ZEE KRB DTN

2008 2007

—E2EENE —ETLF

HK$°000 HK$fOOO

FET FET

Current to 90 days BNHAZ= 90H 217,517 186,567

91 to 180 days 91£2180H 51,539 25,456

181 to 365 days 1812 365H 27,099 14,278

Over 365 days 365H A E 32,288 24,661

328,443 250,962

The Group’s sales are made to several major customers AEBEZHEHEDMBERTERFIELABREE

and there is concentration of credit risks. Collections of EFRER - AEBTHEHRIEREAEERK
outstanding receivable balances are closely monitored on HERE L KDER LR LEEERE -

an ongoing basis to minimise such credit risk.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER 20 EWERR R HMtt B R IE ~ T8
RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS REREZRE @
AND DEPOSITS (continued)
Note (a): Trade receivables (continued) Htat(a) - FEMER 5 (1B)
As of 31 December 2008, trade receivables of R—ZZEENEFE+ A E'I' B EUWERX
HK$48,931,000 (2007: HK$22,468,000) were past due 48,931,000 L (ZEZ £ F : 22,468,000/8
but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade 70 B EERRE - RERIKE R BB ST
receivables is as follows: N
2008 2007
—EENF —EFTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FHT
Up to 3 months =@ARA 710 52
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 17,118 444
Over 6 months NEA M E 31,103 21,972
48,931 22,468

Note (b): Bills receivables BfaE(b) - Y E IR

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with ZESRIED B BV NEA ZRITERLERE
maturity dates within six months:

AEEBKRERZZMERIOT

The maturity profile of the bills receivable of the Group is

as follows:
2008 2007
—EE\F  CTTLf
HK$°000 HK$fOOO
FET FAT
Falling within 90 days 90H 74,910 30,212
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91£180H 87,020 65,191
161,930 95,403

R-ZFENF+_A=1+—H AKERH

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s bills receivable
amounting to HK$5,717,000 (2007: HK$10,550,000) were
pledged to banks for short-term bank borrowings (Note
29).

Note (c): Provision for impairment of receivables

The movement on the provision for impairment of

5,717,000/ 7T (Z 2Tt F : 10550000%@2
EWEEE IR TIRT - UGB EHIETER
(fft3529) °

B et (c) « FEYL 3K TE 6L 18 7% 15

FEW B R EREFEZEIOT -

receivables are as follows:

2008 2007
ZEENF —ET+EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
At 1 January n—A—H 1,615 4,318
Write-back of provision BERE - (2,896)
Provision recognised in the consolidated RirE W mRAERZ
income statement B 14,244 811
Receivables written-off during the year S S lS R N R IR v Do
as uncollectible FE U R IE (55) (749)
Exchange difference N = 217 131
At 31 December W+-_RAR=+—H”H 16,021 1,615
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21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 1. BRAFEFABNIEEZ2E
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR MEE-FAEBERAERQTF
LOSS - GROUP AND COMPANY
2008 2007
—E2EENFE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FAT
Listed securities: thEE
- Equity securities — U.S.A —EARFEE -EH 519 -
— Equity securities - Hong Kong —BRABE-—BE - 34,488
519 34,488

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented in operating activities as part of
changes in working capital in the consolidated cash
flow statement (Note 31).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded as other gains -
net in the consolidated income statement (Note 5).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

BAFEFAGNIERZEMEEDR

ﬁ AenEREINAES

BEeHHEE (MH:E31) -

ES

ERE

i/ 3F1EE+)\)§$'J%E§EZ%E&*&§§

,TE i“'i:
(M 5% 5)

& Wa R A S H A U e

% %E

FREBRAEZ 2 RFEDERNERT S 2

HWITEABE -

22. RESTRICTED CASH 22.ZRFRE
Group Company
rEE ¥ NN

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF —EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FTAEL TERT TAET
Restricted bank deposit ZRERITER 8,612 7,500 7,500 7,500
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22.

23.

24,

Notes to the Consolidated

RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

The effective interest rate on restricted bank deposits
was 0.31% per annum. All of the restricted bank
deposits are denominated in HKD and RMB. It
represents deposits pledged to the banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group, of which
HK$1,112,000 are kept in the bank accounts opened
with banks in the PRC where the remittance of funds
is subject to foreign exchange control.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

Short-term bank deposits are fixed deposits with
banks maturing between three to six months. All of
the short-term bank deposits are denominated in
RMB. They are kept in the bank accounts opened
with banks in the PRC where the remittance of funds
is subject to foreign exchange control.

22.

23.

Financial Statements

e SRR MR

ZRHEE @
RRFBITFERZERFFNEAE0.31% °
Fra X BREIRITERAE TR ARKE
B WHERBTFRITZER  UEAE
EERIRITEE - EF1,112,0008 L7575
BMREFRBRZRITHALZRITER, - MA
HES 2 MEDZININEEH

BHRTER
RHRTERDA=EAZREAZHZ
RITEBFR - AAEBRITERIIAA
REE - ZEERDERRNEFTE 2R
TR ZRITHRP - MABER 2 NETY
XEINEEH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 B ERBREEEY
Group Company
rEH b YN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —TELF —EENE —ETELF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET TER FET
Cash at bank and in hand R1T & F LES 517,261 569,716 162,407 121,113

Funds of the Group amounting to HK$238,737,000
(2007: HK$287,774,000) are kept in the bank
accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange
control.
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. | 7
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each
SREE0.0025% T
2EBR
No. of shares HK$’000
1% 85 FABT
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2007 and RZBETLF+A=+—HK
31 December 2008 —EENE+ZA=1+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRHE -

At 1 January 2008 and RZZEENF—A—BK

31 December 2008 RZEZENE+_A=+—H 2,231,972,835 5,580
Opening balance at 1 January 2007 RZFEELFEF-—A—HZHI#E 1,879,416,120 4,699
Shares issued under share options RIEAR R BB RES S

scheme of the Company (Note (a)) BTG (B 7T (a)) 83,210,000 208
Issue of new shares upon the conversion REEIRNT B N R 31T 2 AT AR

of convertible preference shares issued BT

by subsidiaries i an 232,446,569 581
Shares issued on acquisition of & e B B 88 A R i

subsidiaries (Note (b)) BT D (BT (b)) 36,900,146 92
At 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008 W _ZZ+&+_A=+—HB K

—EZNEFE+A=+—H 2,231,972,835 5,580
Note: Mt et
(a) Share options of the Company (a) AR ZERE R L
The Company operates a share option scheme (the ARRIEFE—HBRAERE ([ZatEl)
“Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining SRS - ELRAMEAETIH#ZER - I
and motivating talented employees in order to strive BN E BB BRRIEBRERY © it 8K
for future developments and expansion of the Group. BABSHEEBEASENZBES AR
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the HITRIFATES - ZefEIN_TT—F
Group’s full-time employees, and executive and non- +t— AT ABER  BIFREEIBURS
executive Directors. The Scheme became effective B8] - DA % PR 10FDAB RN
on 29 November 2001 and unless otherwise W o
cancelled or amended, will remain valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from that date.
The total number of shares in respect of which E R FT A H AR Jrgﬂ(ilﬂﬁ)—fﬁﬁhﬁ
options may be granted shall not (together with all Z%Hxﬁé#ﬁ&Zﬁxﬁﬂ@% TEBBAR
the other Schemes, if any) exceed 10% of the total RN EZETEER BB ITRAR %E;
issued capital of the Company as at date of approval 10% + MEARDQ B EVS AR B 5 INEF M B 3T 3%

of the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from shareholders to renew the 10% limit.
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(a)

Share options of the Company (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme, together
with any unexercised share options granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company in issue, may not exceed 30% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue
at any time. On 18 March 2004, 33,000,000 share
options were granted to certain directors and
employees at an exercise price of HK$0.374 per
share (the average closing price of the shares as
quoted in the daily quotations sheets issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the five
business days immediately preceding 18 March 2004)
with an expiry date of 17 March 2014.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17
August 2005, a refreshment of the limit on grant of
options under the Scheme was approved by the
Company’s shareholders. Upon refreshing the 10%
limit on grant of options under the Scheme,
33,305,403 shares may be issued pursuant to the
grant of further options under the Scheme.

On 26 September 2005, 33,300,000 share options
were granted to certain directors and employees at
an exercise price of HK$0.768 per share (the average
closing price of the shares as quoted in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited for the five business days
immediately preceding 26 September 2005) with an
expiry date of 25 September 2015. The option period
commences on 26 September 2005 and expires 10
years thereafter.

Options granted are vested as follows:
On 26 September 2005 Up to 50%

On 26 September 2006 Up to 100%

25. I& 2 @)

Hist -
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ARERIE A 230% c R_TETMEFE=A
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330000001&35%%% TEERER
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AAEEZERSE ‘éﬁéi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ Gk
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(a)

Share options of the Company (continued)

The Share Subdivision has led to an adjustment to
the exercise price of the outstanding options and
the number of shares to be issued by the Company
upon exercise of the outstanding options. For share
options with exercise period from 18 March 2004 to
17 March 2014, the number of shares to be issued
by the Company upon full exercise of such
outstanding options immediately before the Share
Subdivision has been increased from 23,000,000
shares to 92,000,000 shares and the exercise price
has been adjusted from HK$0.374 to HK$0.0935
per share. For share options with exercise period
from 26 September 2005 to 25 September 2015,
the number of shares to be issued by the Company
upon full exercise of such outstanding options
immediately before the Share Subdivision has been
increased from 33,300,000 shares to 133,200,000
shares and the exercise price has been adjusted
from HK$0.768 to HK$0.192 per share.

On 2 January 2007, 43,000,000 share options were
granted to certain employees at an exercise price of
HK$2.00 per share (the average closing price of the
shares as quoted in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five business days immediately preceding 2
January 2007) with an expiry date of 1 January 2010.

There are no changes in any term of the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, no share
options have been granted, exercised or lapsed. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
purchase or settle the option in cash. As at the date
of this report, the Company has 41,458,000 share
options outstanding.

25. & 2 @)

ez

(a)
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25. R 7 ()
B - ()

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

BEEEERREIEEREZBEERHE

(b) Acquisition of the entire interest in Baifu (b)

Hualong and Pacific Sheen and disposal of 5%
interest in Hualong Holding

On 10 February 2007, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Hualong
Agreement”) with £ 3 A (Wang Bing Ren), £# 7
(Wang Zhong Fang), ¥ 7~ & (Jiang Jie Zhong), #8715
# (Zhao Shu Xun (also known as i 71 % (Zhao Li
Bin)), Z %Il (Li Ning Chuan) and Everon Group
Holdings Limited (a company incorporated in Hong
Kong) (collectively the “Hualong Vendors”), who are
parties then independent of the Group, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to procure the acquisition
of the entire registered capital of Hangzhou PAX
Electric Technology Limited (Formerly known as
“Hangzhou Baifu Holding Company Limited”), a
company incorporated in the PRC which holds the
entire interest in MINEEEFHIMWER A A
(Hangzhou Hualong Electronic Technology Company
Limited), a company established in the PRC
(“Hualong Electronic”) and i )N % (& {5 B & fif B IR
‘A @] (Hangzhou Hualong Information Technology
Company Limited), a company established in the
PRC (“Hualong Information”), the entire issued share
capital of Pacific Sheen International Limited (& JIE
X AEBR AR, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong (“Pacific Sheen”) and its subsidiary (collectively
referred to as the “Hualong Group”) and the
shareholders’ loans of HK$24.0 million (the
“Shareholders’ Loans”) for a total consideration of
RMB270.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$268.6 million) (the “Hualong Acquisition”). The
consideration for the Hualong Acquisition was
satisfied as to RMB170.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$176.3 million) in cash and as to
the remaining balance of RMB100.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$92.3 million) by way
of the issuance of 36,900,146 new shares of the
Company (the “Consideration Shares”). The fair value
of the consideration shares was based on the
published closing share price of HK$2.5 as at 30
July 2007.
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26. RESERVES 26. f# &
(a) Group (a) &&ME
Contributed
surplus
Share (Note(i)) Other  Exchange  Retained
premium EHBH  reserves reserve  earnings Total

ROEE  (WE)  HBRE  EXRE  REEA aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TEL TEL

At 1 January 2007 R-ZE+E&-A-H 269,586 168,434 156,494 7,688 72,771 674,973
Profit for the year EEER - - - - 184,276 184,276
Shares issued under share option READAERE

scheme of the Company (Note 25(3)) SHEIRTRG (A3 25(a) 15,474 - - - - 15,474

Issue of new shares upon the conversion  RNERIBAFETZ
of convertible preference shares issued Al R B LR E

by subsidiaries ESGE ) 171,112 - (149,614) - - 21,498

Employee share option scheme EBERE:TE

- value of employee services - EERKER - - 27,616 - - 27,616
Acauisition of subsidiaries (Note 25(b)  WEEM B2 A (Hf25(b)) 92,158 - - - - 92,158
Exchange differences arising on BEBNIELT

translation of the financial BHEEL

statements of foreign subsidiaries ERES - - - 38,272 - 33,272

At 31 December 2007 RZEBLE+-A=1-H 548,330 168,434 34,496 40960 257,047 1,049,267

At 1 January 2008 RZEENE-A—-H 548,330 168,434 34,496 40,960 257,047 1,049,267

Profit for the year EEEF - - - - 114,350 114,350

Purchase of 5% equity interest WE-FW B E5%HiE

in a subsidiary (Note 34) (Fizt34) - - (13,292) - - (13,292)
Exchange differences arising on BEFHNBAT

translation of the financial BBl

statements of foreign subsidiaries ERZE - - - 41,062 - 41,082

At 31 December 2008 RZEENF+-A=1-H 548,330 168,434 21,204 82,022 371,397 1,191,387

Note: Miat -

()  The contributed surplus of the Group () AEBzEHZRSERNSEIZERE
represents the difference between the RAR (=) R R % %% B
nominal value of the ordinary shares and B-_EZE—FN\A LB Z@EEA
share premium account of Hi Sun Holdings g RBRER-_ZTEZT—F+A++tH
Limited (“HSHL”) acquired pursuant to the Tz EBEA([EEDKEZ
group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) SEER s EBREERRDEE
on 17 October 2001 as set out in the R BAQARMLERBRZEFEITR
circular to the shareholders of HSHL dated HEEBEZERE -

9 August 2001, over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof.
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26. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company

26. f# & (&)
(b) A& F]
Contributed
surplus
Share (Note (i) Other Retained
premium BEaEs reserves earnings Total
R EE (Bt () Hitn ke REEF it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TATL TATL

At 1 January 2007 R-EZ+E-f-H 269,586 46,417 6,607 55,065 377,675
Loss for the year FEBR - - - (2,461) (2,461)
Shares issued under share option READAERE

scheme of the Company (Note 25(a)  &H B1% /TR {7 (Hfi#25(a)) 15,474 - - - 15,474
Issue of new shares upon the conversion &I EARE T2

of convertible preference shares MARELRE

issued by subsidiaries BIHRG 398,816 - - - 398,816
Employee share option scheme - value 18 B B iRt

of employee services —EERBEE - - 27,616 - 27,616
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 25(b)  WUEEH B 2 A (Hf i 25(b)) 92,158 - - - 92,158
At 31 December 2007 R-ZEZ+&+-A=1-H 776,034 46,417 34,223 52,604 909,278
At 1 January 2008 R-2L\F—-A—H 776,034 46,417 34,223 52,604 909,278
Loss for the year FEEER - - - (36,508) (36,508)
At 31 December 2008 R=2BNE+=ZA=t-H 776,034 46,417 34,223 16,096 872,770
Note: Bt

(1)

(if)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the fair value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Reorganisation over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, a company may make distributions
to its members out of the contributed surplus
under certain circumstances.

As at 31 December 2008, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to
the equity holders of the Company, including
contributed surplus, other reserves and retained
earnings, was HK$96,736,000 (2007:
HK$133,244,000).

(i) $ﬂﬁ2€%ﬁ%hﬂﬁiﬁﬁw
BrWBRRAKRNATFEEARR
ﬁ%%ﬁZE%ﬁ%ﬁE@Z%
Be-REARE-NAN—F2F
Ao ARAEETERATMEESR
BRI R AR ERRAIEL D
i

(i RZZTZENF+_A=+—8 &
NCIEIR S, AE%%&WEAZG%%
(PIEEHAK  HtbFEERRE
%IJ)é,ﬂi\%,?se,oooi%ﬁ(:zzt
£ 1 133,244,000/ 7T) ©
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2T ENERR R HMESKIE
Group Company
rEE b NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENGF —ITELFE ZEBENF —ITTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FET FH&T
Trade payables & BR 3K
(Note below) (Bt et 20°F) 186,495 130,057 - -
Other payables and HEMEMRIER
accruals JE TR IE 119,132 143,656 13,502 10,789
Pension obligations BAREHK 5,541 10,228 - -
Social security and e RE R
other taxes H 718 29,054 17,548 - -
340,222 301,489 13,502 10,789
Note: Bfet -
At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the ageing analysis of RZEENFRZZEZELF+A=+—H"
the trade payables was as follows: FERERZRZIRRDTIT ¢
Group
TEME
2008 2007
—EENE —EELEF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Current to 90 days REFE90H 152,235 98,001
91 to 180 days 91£ 180H 21,986 14,097
181 to 365 days 181% 365H 2,414 5,123
Over 365 days #RiE365H 9,860 12,836
186,495 130,057
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28.DUE FROM A FELLOW

SUBSIDIARY

The amounts due from a fellow subsidiary are interest
free, unsecured, and repayable on demand.

29. BORROWINGS

28. B —XERME 2 ANE

W —RERMBARRERRS - B
HERREREN -

29. &

Group
rEHE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT THETT
Current Bp &8
Short term bank loans — PRC, HERTER—FH -
secured (Note) BHEA ( Kt at) 15,209 42 551
Total borrowings BB 15,209 42,551
Note: Bt -

As at 31 December 2008, short term bank loans of
RMBS8,400,000 (approximately HK$9,492,000) (2007:
HK$32,528,000) were secured by the leasehold land and
building of the subsidiaries of the Company (Note 15) and
the corporate guarantee from an independent third party,
FEYNTH = #F AT & ER A R A A (Shenzhen High and
New Technology Investment Guarantee Company Limited).

As at 31 December 2008, short term bank loans of
RMB5,059,000 (approximately HK$5,717,000) (2007:
HK$10,023,000) were secured by the bills receivable of a
subsidiary of the Company (Note 20).

WR-_EBEZNE+_F=1+—08 ARK
8,400,0007T (#79,492,0008 7T) (ZEZ+4
32528000/%75)2%431%%‘?% KR AN E W E

NElZHE L REF (M5 Uk —2 B
FEZAFRYTEIBMRERRERAT ZA
A REEA -

R_EBEZNE+_F=1+—08 ARK
5,059,0007T (495,717,000 JT) (_$$t$
10,023,000/ 70) 2 RERSRITE A AR
BB A A 2 FE R R AR fE R 1R (T 5E20) -
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29. BORROWINGS (continued)

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

29. B ;X @)

ERZEHAMT

Group
AEE
Bank borrowings
RITHER
2008 2007
—EENFE Z—ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
Within 1 year —F K 15,209 42 551
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date REEBZEBRNEDT
were as follows:
2008 2007
ZEENE —ETLF
Renminbi Renminbi
ARM AR®
per annum  per annum
gF B
Short term bank borrowings & #iER1TE X 6.30% 7.35%
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29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29. & K ()
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are ERREBENTINERIE

denominated in the following currencies:

Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENFE CZZTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Renminbi AR 15,209 42,551
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, a bank R_EZENFR_ZBETLF+_A=+—
guarantee line of HK$7,500,000 was provided to the H ARAERERHZBITRERR
Company, which was secured by fixed deposits of 7,500,000 7 + LTI LA A R R —KERTT
the Company at a bank of HK$7,500,000 and 2 FE BB 37,500,000 87T * AEARQF 2
corporate guarantee by the Company (Note 22). NAEEREDER (FiF22) -
30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - .ELEMEHR —F&KEE
GROUP
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EBRLACHRNAKBRENBEEHBRN
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset BHaEENE  BEEMGHPIRE K
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and R AT REMEHEERAEE N
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same T|ig - MBS BOT -
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Deferred tax assets to be recovered +ZEA A TREE
within 12 months R IEE E (316) (119)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled TZEAABRZ
within 12 months BEXEMRBEEE 87 119
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled TZEAEBENZ
after 12 months ELEBHEAER 6,870 11,622
Deferred tax liabilities — net RELEHIEEE - F8 6,641 11,622
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30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — 0.ELERBH —FEEH @
GROUP (continued)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities FRN - BAERMIEBRNERER 2 &% EAK
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same AT BEEBEEERBECESHOT

taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

2008 2007
ZEENE ZTTtE
Accelerated Accelerated
tax  Fair value tax Fair value
depreciation gains Total depreciation gains Total
MEHREHRE AFEERE A MERENE ATEENE CE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TET TER TEL

Deferred tax liabilities BERERRE
At 1 January w—HA—H 19 11,522 11,641 6 - 6
Exchange differences EHER - 599 599 - 430 430
Acquired on acquisition RN B 2 A6

of subsidiaries k& - - - - 13,350 13,350
Charged/(credited) to BRAkaE

consolidated income neg/ GrA)

statement (32 (3,072) (3,104) 113 (2,259) (2,145)
Fffect of change in tax rate  HEEHYE - (2,179) (2,179) - - -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—-H 87 6,870 6,957 119 11,522 11,641
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30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - 0.ELERBH —FEE @)
GROUP (continued)
Tax losses
HEEE
2008 2007
—EENF ZZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Deferred tax assets ELEHREEE
At 1 January Kn—H—H (119) (6)
Exchange differences M H =58 (2) -
Credited to consolidated BiraWam &
income statement A (195) (113)
At 31 December R+=—H=+—8H (316) (119)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related benefits through the future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2008, the
Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$86,485,000 (2007: HK$32,440,000) to carry
forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty
of their future recoverability. The tax losses will expire
according to the prevailing tax laws and regulations
in the countries in which the Group operates.

EEFSREEDREHEBENDA AR
BERERD SN ER MM EE 2 THIA
EREER BE-_TTN\F+_A=1
—B  AEBEZAEAIVNEEBEERER
86,485,000/8 7T (ZZTZT A : 32,440,000
B7T) - AR R RERBTWA - B
PR BE BE TE L 2 7% 8 U8 1R BE B 10 o 2R BB
B - R EER LA AEE - LEHRIE
ERZIMAERBEASELZEAR ZER
RO E °
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N.GERERERME

(a) BRATEHAGANEEEELEZRSY

31.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax

to cash generated from operations iR
2008 2007
—EENF g 3
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FET

Profit before income tax BR: P 15 %50 B 4 A 176,553 216,768
Interest income FEWA (4,400) (9,303)
Gain on deemed disposal of 20% equity in RIELHE-—RMBAF

interest in a subsidiary 20% % 4 2 Wzt - (43,258)
Employee share option scheme EEBRETE

- value of employee services - EERBEE - 27,616
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BELRENE 39,159 26,029
Depreciation of investment property KEMENE 109 177
Amortisation of leasehold land E 1 5y 1,070 913
Amortisation of intangible assets BN EEEH 7,702 2,892
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BEK

plant and equipment FEER 905 3,229
Provision/(write-back of provision) for impairment & Ut 8% 28 (B B 5/

of trade receivable, net (Bm#&®) %8 14,244 (3,225)
Write-off of inventories, net WEFE  F8 22,056 2,766
Finance costs BMEKAK 1,544 2,797
Operating profit before working capital changes &&& & Z & a1 2 L2 % 7 258,942 227,401
Increase in trade and other receivables, FE LS B AR I LA R U SRR

prepayments and deposits BRAFEREZSEM (138,856) (91,504)
Increase in inventories FEEM (53,538) (65,548)
Decrease in financial assets at BATEFARNIEBEEZ

fair value through profit or loss éﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ?}ﬁd\ 33,969 6,793
Decrease in amount due from a related company fE— K @& D B FZIB R - 67
Increase in amount due from a fellow subsidiary — fEW— K A & f‘ﬁ% B SR AN (65) (1,111)
Increase in trade and other payables JE A< B 3R N L At & < 5K IB 35 A 38,733 59,121
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FEt [F Z i B 2 &) 5 & 7 4 - (13,497)
Cash generated from operations REEE 2R 139,185 121,722
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31.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from

MN.GERERERME @

(b) RRERERA HEWE - BEK

sale of property, plant and equipment REFRBREBOT
comprise:
2008 2007
—EENFE Z—ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Net book amount (Notes 15 and 16) BRE R 1E (ATt 15/ 16) 2,213 8,469
Loss on sale of property, HEDE  BEREEK
plant and equipment and HE T E5i8
leasehold land (905) (3,229)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME  BEEXER
plant and equipment and ME + A5 RIE
leasehold land 1,308 5,240
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES R2.ZAREE
As at 31 December 2008, the Group and the NZEENF+TZA=1T—80  FEEK
Company had no contingent liabilities (2007: Nil). RARWENIABE(ZZEZTLF | &) o
33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33. WEFHNEKIE

At 31 December 2008, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

RZZBZENF+Z_A=+—H  XEER
AABEELEHENE THARRKERES

cancellable operating leases as follows: REBEWT -
Land and buildings Equipment
T RETF =B
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —TTtLHF ZEBEENF —TTtHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT FER FAT
Not later than one year TER—F 5,034 6,279 - 9,792
Later than one year and BR—F - BNE
not later than five years RAF 3,490 1,079 - -
8,524 7,358 - 9,792
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34. PURCHASE OF NON-CONTROLLING 4. BEFERER

INTERESTS

On 8 April 2008, the Company entered into a sale RZZEZENFWMANE » ARG ENew
and purchase agreement with the non-controlling Concept Services Limited([ New
interests of New Concept Services Limited (“New Concept]) 2 FE ¥ i% I 3R 5t % 15,534,000
Concept”) in relation to the purchase of the then AL 2 R E W E K New ConceptH) £/
remaining 5% interest in New Concept at a cash %R VEE MR NBEAKE 2%
consideration of HK$15,534,000 as the Group can BE—TPBERRESESFAERERITE - %A
further expand the business activity to the electronic WER—_ZZ N NFHEATHBTK ' M
power meters industry. The purchase was completed New Concepti B EE 22 & B A
on 15 May 2008 and New Concept becomes the Al e

wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Details of net assets acquired are as follows: FriiBEEFEFBET
HK$’000
FAT
Purchase consideration: BERE
— cash paid —B2fRe 15,534
Company’s additional capital NN B E FEIE AR B
contribution to the subsidiary ZMBARR ZBEINEE
shared by non-controlling interests 12,758
Share of carrying value of net identifiable & 1f Fff & A 7] °] :% B & & ¥ &
assets of the subsidiary ZBRMEE (15,000)
Purchase consideration and additional BERERIEEREZ 2B
capital contribution shared by FEEEEMBATEEF
non-controlling interests over share of BzREBEBZEZE A
carrying value of net assets of the Ewm (M it26(a))
subsidiary, recorded in equity (Note 26(a)) 13,292
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35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.EEIRS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group is controlled RZEZENF+ZA=+—08  x&EH
by Rich Global Limited (incorporated in British Virgin N EE R XS FMAK S 2 Rich Global
Islands), which owns 27.65% of the Company’s Limited¥E &l + 322 B1# B 4 A 5127.65% /%
shares. The remaining 72.35% of the shares are 7o BRT7235%RMDBERBRALTHEE °
widely held.
(a) Transactions with related parties during (a) FREBREIRS :
the year:
The Group has no significant transaction with AEERFAMBETMANERBETR
related parties during the year (2007: Nil). S5 (ZEZTLF  8&) -
(b) Year end balances with related parties are () HERAEFERAZEFRELHRNT :
as follows:
2008 2007
—EBEENE —ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Receivable from a related company: JEW —KEFE R FFIA ¢
Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power traBEERENEER
Information Technology Ltd. (Note) BB R A (Hat) 1,176 1,111
Note: Mt et
IEReBEERENEERMMARZAF (Beiing Hi Sun IEtREEEAENEERMNERAAANR
Electric Power Information Technology Limited*), a N FEEREHI Sun Limitedz & & W /8
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited which is NI

a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The balances with related parties were HEEF CEBRAEERR 2B KR
unsecured, interest free and repayable on RERMNE -
demand.

(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEBAEHE
During the years ended 31 December 2007 and HE_ZTTLFR-_FENFT+A
2008, key management compensation is =+—HLEFE FEEBABHE
equivalent to the Directors’ emolument as HERMFMBERE 2 EEME -

disclosed in Note 8.
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36.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

(b)

Incorporation of a new wholly owned
subsidiary

On 11 March 2009, the Company incorporated
a new wholly owned subsidiary # 2 & 5 i@ B
= B 17 BR 2 & (Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT
Ltd) (“Hunan Hisun”) in Hunan PRC. The
principal activity of Hunan Hisun is to develop
the mobile payment solutions which will enable
consumers to use their cell phones as a
payment device to capture the demand for
innovative telecom solutions, bringing additional
growth impetus to Hi Sun. This strategic move
is expected to create synergy among our
telecommunication solutions, financial solutions
and EFT-POS terminals segments.

Disposal of Sale Shares and adoption of
PAX Share Option Scheme

On 30 March 2009, PAX Technology Limited
(“PAX”) (an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into the conditional
sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) with the Company,
Dream River Limited (the “Purchaser”) and Hi
Sun Technology Holding Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Transferor”), pursuant to which the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase the
8,750,000 PAX ordinary shares (the “Sale
Shares”) held by the Transferor, and the
Transferor has conditionally agreed to sell the
Sale Shares to the Purchaser at the
consideration of US$20 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$155.4 million). Immediately
upon registration of the Sale Shares in the name
of the Purchaser, the Sale Shares shall be re-
designated as the PAX Series B preference
shares on a one-to-one basis and those PAX
Series B preference shares shall represent 20%
of the total issued share capital of PAX.
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(a)

(b)

AMKL-EHEZENBAR

RZZZNF=ZA+—B ARFAR
B8 FE E M AR AL — R T 2 B B A
AfEREBEEESRTERQA
(MDA =B - HEREZEZER
RABRBHNFTERTE AT EH
EEERATHRIEAXNRE KME
BHESHAIMEMBRTRZFER
¥ R=5HRBIMERE N - WK
MEEFAIEANERE Z EMBERT
R EBRERTRERMET KM
73 AR TH) A W Rl e o

HEHEROREATEBRESS

R-ZZETZAFZA=Z+H BRI
ERAF(EAEE]) (RRRZMEEIHE
>EWBRA)EARQA - Dream
River Limited ([E 7)) R A AR 2 M
BE2ENBRARSEEEERERA
RI(EEADITLERHEEEHZ
(TEEWH=#]) @ Bt EFBEHGE
EWEEEARFAE 28,750,000k B &
L@ ([HERMD]) - MEBREABK
HREMEFLEHEERD  RER
20,000,000% 7t ( # & » 4
155,400,000/ 7T) » B HE 85 & B 15 A
BETREERE  HEROBEZ Y
—HEEMETREERYBEL
KR ZEEERIIBELEREEES
B2 BITIRAZ20% °
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36. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

(b) Disposal of Sale Shares and adoption

of PAX Share Option Scheme
(continued)
The completion of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement is subject to certain conditions
as stipulated in the Sale and Purchase
Agreement.

PAX also intends to adopt a PAX Share
Option Scheme for the issuance of such
number of PAX ordinary shares representing
no more than 5% of the total number of PAX
shares in issue immediately after the
completion of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement.

37. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been re-
classified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

These reclassifications have no impact on the
Group’s total equity as at both 31 December 2007
and 2008, or on the Group’s profit for the years
ended 31 December 2007 and 2008.

HEHREE@®
(b) HEMERHGRRMNESHRESTS
()

EEmRAGEEHEMEE TR
ERRIR C TETEK

BENERNE ERBRES - N
BT TEBAEBEEHETKRE R
THERNDEHS% B E BB -

7.k BEHF

ETHBEHRFETEY  REAFEZZ
5 — 2 e

ZEEN O BRHAKRER_STTLEFR -
EENFT AT —HAZEREBEAR
SEHE_TTLFR_TENF+ A
=St -RAEFEZGENBEEFAZE -
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of R agkERBERERMIZERBRAENR S
the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for MAEBBERAEVMBRFTFEE AMEEERER

the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited GEEEHEBEBENAT ¢
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is
set as below:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EBENE CZTTLF CZETRE ZTTHF —ITTWH
Continuing  Continuing ~ Continuing ~ Continuing ~ Continuing
operations  operations  operations  operations  Operations
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET FET TER TET

Results S
Profit/(Loss) attributable BaBEAER

to equity holders w ikl (EE) 114,350 184,276 133,600 62,304 (12,127)
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEE 1,668,616 1,490,745 847,110 313,741 240,721
Total liabilities BERE (403,947) (389,885) (167,438) (186,307) (192,090)
Capital and reserves ARAIEEFEA

attributable to the FEERARG#E

Company’s equity holders 1,196,967 1,054,847 679,672 127,434 48,631
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